

Journal of the House

Tuesday, March 21, 2023

At ten o'clock in the forenoon, the Speaker called the House to order.

Devotional Exercises

Devotional exercises were conducted by Rep. Peter Anthony of Barre.

Pledge of Allegiance

Page Olivia Badger of Barre Town led the House in the Pledge of Allegiance.

Message from the Governor

A message was received from His Excellency, the Governor, by Ms. Brittney L. Wilson, Secretary of Civil and Military Affairs, as follows:

Madam Speaker:

I am directed by the Governor to inform the House of Representatives that on the 20th day of March 2023, *he allowed to become law without his signature a bill* originating in the House of the following title:

H. 145 An act relating to fiscal year 2023 budget adjustments

“March 20, 2023

The Honorable BetsyAnn Wrask
Clerk of the Vermont House of Representatives
115 State Street
Montpelier, VT 05633

Re: H.145, AN ACT RELATING TO FISCAL YEAR 2023 BUDGET ADJUSTMENTS

Dear Ms. Wrask:

Pursuant to Chapter II, Section 11 of the Vermont Constitution, H.145, *An act relating to fiscal year 2023 budget adjustments*, will become law without my signature for the reasons stated herein.

While I appreciate the General Assembly including nearly all the initiatives I asked for in budget adjustment, including additional housing, healthcare stabilization, home heating assistance, and more, I'm deeply concerned with the Legislature's changes that overspent my proposal by over \$50 million.

As I have previously shared in letters to Committee Chairs and in testimony given by my Administration, this will leave us with significantly less to put towards critical investments in the FY24 budget.

While some of the Legislature's additional spending may be worthy of consideration, there was no opportunity to weigh their merit against all other investments in the FY24 budget. Spending this much money so early in the session, without looking at everything in the aggregate means we can't be sure we're getting the most out of the historic one-time opportunity for Vermonters.

It's imperative the Legislature invest revenue surplus with more discipline and clarity. Failing to do so will squander the historic and transformative opportunity we find ourselves in.

Unfortunately, the Legislature's changes to the budget adjustment suggests a willingness to fall back into a spending, instead of investing, strategy, and I firmly believe we must not allow this to happen in the FY24 budget.

Instead, I ask we take a well-coordinated and strategic approach, in line with what I've recommended, to fund all the tangible and transformative community infrastructure projects, affordability and workforce initiatives and more, to get real and lasting results for every county and every community.

Sincerely,
Philip B. Scott
Governor"

Message from the Governor

A message was received from His Excellency, the Governor, by Ms. Brittney L. Wilson, Secretary of Civil and Military Affairs, as follows:

Madam Speaker:

I am directed by the Governor to inform the House of Representatives that on the 20th day of March 2023, he signed a bill originating in the House of the following title:

H. 46 An act relating to approval of the dissolution of Colchester Fire District No. 3

New Member Announced and Appointed to Committee

Rep. Carpenter of Hyde Park, who was recently appointed by the Governor to fill the vacancy in Lamoille-2, having taken and subscribed the oath administered by the Clerk, as required by the Constitution and laws of the

State,. was seated and then appointed by the Speaker to the Committee on Health Care.

House Bills Introduced

House bills of the following titles were severally introduced, read the first time, and referred to committee or placed on the Notice Calendar as follows:

H. 478

By Rep. Graning of Jericho,

House bill, entitled

An act relating to an independent school becoming a public school

To the Committee on Education.

H. 479

By the Committee on Transportation,

House bill, entitled

An act relating to the Transportation Program and miscellaneous changes to laws related to transportation

Pursuant to House Rule 35(a), affecting the revenue of the State, was referred to the Committee on Ways and Means.

H. 480

By the Committee on Ways and Means,

House bill, entitled

An act relating to property valuation and reappraisals

Pursuant to House Rule 35(a), carrying an appropriation, was referred to the Committee on Appropriations.

H. 481

By the Committee on Health Care,

House bill, entitled

An act relating to public health initiatives to address death by suicide

Pursuant to House Rule 48, placed on the Notice Calendar.

H. 482

By the Committee on Government Operations and Military Affairs,

House bill, entitled

An act relating to Vermont Criminal Justice Council recommendations for law enforcement officer training

Pursuant to House Rule 48, placed on the Notice Calendar.

H. 483

By the Committee on Education,

House bill, entitled

An act relating to the accountability and oversight of approved independent schools that are eligible to receive public tuition

Pursuant to House Rule 48, placed on the Notice Calendar.

H. 484

By the Committee on Commerce and Economic Development,

House bill, entitled

An act relating to enhancing workforce and economic development opportunities

Pursuant to House Rule 35(a), affecting the revenue of the State, was referred to the Committee on Ways and Means.

H. 485

By Reps. Bos-Lun of Westminster and Satcowitz of Randolph,

House bill, entitled

An act relating to the use of leghold traps

To the Committee on Environment and Energy.

H. 486

By the Committee on Education,

House bill, entitled

An act relating to school construction

Pursuant to House Rule 35(a), affecting the revenue of the State or materially affecting the revenue of one or more municipalities, was referred to the Committee on Ways and Means.

Joint Resolution Referred to Committee

J.R.S. 17

By Senators Harrison, Baruth, Bray, Brock, Campion, Chittenden, Clarkson, Collamore, Cummings, Gulick, Hardy, Hashim, Ingalls, Lyons,

MacDonald, Mazza, McCormack, Ram Hinsdale, Starr, Vyhovsky, Watson, Weeks, White, and Williams,

J.R.S. 17. Joint resolution urging U.S. Citizenship and Immigration Services to comply with the expedited asylum hearing provisions of the Afghan Supplemental Appropriations Act of 2022.

Whereas, the final departure of American military personnel from Afghanistan in August 2021 meant that the Taliban would assume complete control of the Afghan government and society, greatly endangering Afghans and members of their families who worked for or were otherwise associated with the United States government, and

Whereas, recognizing that this imminent departure would pose an immediate threat, the United States Department of Homeland Security established an evacuation and resettlement program known as Operation Allies Welcome that paroled certain Afghan nationals into the United States for a two-year period, and

Whereas, despite the activation of Operation Allies Welcome, in the tumult of the Americans' departure, many Afghans, including Hazaras, human rights activists, journalists, members of the LGBTQI community, Shias, and others who are associated with the U.S. government, were unable to depart, and

Whereas, Congress also responded to this dire situation and adopted the Afghan Supplemental Appropriations Act of 2022 (the Act), Pub. L. 117–43, Division C, and

Whereas, as provided in Sec. 2502 (a) of the Act, “a citizen or national of Afghanistan (or a person with no nationality who last habitually resided in Afghanistan)” is entitled, per section 2502(c), to an expedited U.S. Citizenship and Immigration Services (USCIS) asylum review process directing that the initial interview on the asylum application be conducted not later than 45 days after the application’s filing date, and that, “in the absence of exceptional circumstances, [USCIS shall] issue a final administrative adjudication on the asylum application within 150 days after the date the application is filed,” and

Whereas, USCIS has not been observing the 150-day asylum decision deadline, even when the application does not present extraordinary circumstances, and

Whereas, lawyers from the Association of Africans Living in Vermont and the U.S. Committee for Refugees and Immigrants Vermont have filed more than 40 Afghan asylum applications for which no federal government response has been received for a period of longer than 150 days, and

Whereas, Afghans living in the United States on parole status must have their own asylum application approved before petitioning for relatives who remain in Afghanistan or who have fled to Pakistan to be admitted into the United States, and

Whereas, for Afghan asylum applicants residing in Vermont, this bureaucratic delay is preventing them from building new lives, but it is life-threatening for their family members who remain in Afghanistan or are living as refugees in a third country, *now therefore be it*

Resolved by the Senate and House of Representatives:

That the General Assembly urges USCIS to comply fully with the accelerated asylum hearing provisions of the Afghan Supplemental Appropriations Act of 2022, *and be it further*

Resolved: That the Secretary of State be directed to send a copy of this resolution to USCIS Director Ur M. Jaddou and to the Vermont Congressional Delegation.

Was read by title, treated as a bill, and referred to the Committee on General and Housing pursuant to House Rule 52.

Bills Referred to Committee on Ways and Means

House bills of the following titles, appearing on the Notice Calendar, affecting the revenue of the State, under House Rule 35(a), were referred to the Committee on Ways and Means:

H. 31

House bill, entitled

An act relating to aquatic nuisance control

H. 222

House bill, entitled

An act relating to reducing overdoses

H. 276

House bill, entitled

An act relating to creating a rental housing registry

H. 282

House bill, entitled

An act relating to the Psychology Interjurisdictional Compact

Bills Referred to Committee on Appropriations

House bills of the following titles, appearing on the Notice Calendar, carrying appropriations, under House Rule 35(a), were referred to the Committee on Appropriations:

H. 102

House bill, entitled

An act relating to the Art in State Buildings Program

H. 125

House bill, entitled

An act relating to boards and commissions

H. 158

House bill, entitled

An act relating to the beverage container redemption system

H. 213

House bill, entitled

An act relating to creating a study committee on mobile homes and mobile home parks

H. 270

House bill, entitled

An act relating to miscellaneous amendments to the adult-use and medical cannabis programs

H. 414

House bill, entitled

An act relating to establishing an unused drug repository for Vermont

H. 472

House bill, entitled

An act relating to miscellaneous agricultural subjects

Ceremonial Readings**H.C.R. 50**

House concurrent resolution congratulating the Governor's Institutes of Vermont on their 40th anniversary

Offered by: Representatives Bos-Lun of Westminster, Andrews of Westford, Anthony of Barre City, Boyden of Cambridge, Brumsted of Shelburne, Burke of Brattleboro, Buss of Woodstock, Chapin of East Montpelier, Coffey of Guilford, Cordes of Lincoln, Dodge of Essex, Dolan of Essex Junction, Farlice-Rubio of Barnet, Goldman of Rockingham, Goslant of Northfield, Graning of Jericho, Gregoire of Fairfield, Hango of Berkshire, Harrison of Chittenden, Howard of Rutland City, Jerome of Brandon, Leavitt of Grand Isle, Masland of Thetford, McCann of Montpelier, Mihaly of Calais, Mrowicki of Putney, Mulvaney-Stanak of Burlington, Pajala of Londonderry, Rachelson of Burlington, Stevens of Waterbury, Stone of Burlington, Torre of Moretown, and Troiano of Stannard

Whereas, the catalyst for the formation of the Governor’s Institutes of Vermont (GIV) occurred in 1982, when the Commissioner of Education and the Director of the Vermont Arts Council identified a serious deficiency in arts education that resulted in the 1983 launch of the Governor’s Institute on the Arts, with a large and enthusiastic student response, and

Whereas, the mission of GIV “is to help Vermont create productive, empowered, and engaged young adults by reaching out to diverse learners with high-impact, world-class learning opportunities,” and

Whereas, since 1983, numerous and academically diverse institutes have been established and housed on college campuses, and, in 2023, the institutes will focus on the Arts, Engineering, Entrepreneurship, Environmental Science & Technology, Global Issues & Youth Action, Health & Medicine, Mathematical Sciences, and Technology & Design, and

Whereas, the institutes are geographically and economically, racially and ethnically, and gender- and identity-inclusive, as well as physically accessible, and students pay a sliding scale tuition, ensuring affordability, and

Whereas, in addition to the summer college residency programs, GIV has conducted winter weekends, one-day Artshops, and, in response to the restrictions of COVID-19, online summer immersions were developed, and

Whereas, Christine Graham, David Gibson, Jean Olson, Karen Taylor Mitchell, and, since 2021, Elizabeth Frascoia have each served as an outstanding GIV Executive Director, and over 12,000 Vermont youths have enriched their lives by attending a GIV institute, now therefore be it

Resolved by the Senate and House of Representatives:

That the General Assembly congratulates the Governor’s Institutes of Vermont on their 40th anniversary, and be it further

Resolved: That the Secretary of State be directed to send a copy of this resolution to GIV Executive Director Elizabeth Frascoia.

Having been adopted in concurrence on Friday, March 17, 2023 in accord with Joint Rule 16b, was read.

H.C.R. 31

House concurrent resolution in memory of Marshall Webb

Offered by: All Members of the House

Offered by: All Members of the Senate

Whereas, the educational, agricultural, and cultural resource jewel, Shelburne Farms, owes much of its success to the continuing devotion of its nonprofit organization's cofounder, Marshall Webb, and

Whereas, his life's journey as a passionate environmental advocate and educator began with his birth on April 22, 1948, the annual date that, since 1970, has been designated as Earth Day, and

Whereas, a graduate of the Groton School, Marshall Webb attended Wesleyan University, and he is a University of Vermont alum, and

Whereas, he interrupted his college studies to work with his family on the future of their nationally significant property on the shores of Lake Champlain, a collaborative discussion that, in 1972, resulted in his cofounding of the Shelburne Farms nonprofit organization, and

Whereas, Shelburne Farms is now a leading Vermont center for education for sustainability and welcomes Vermonters and visitors to enjoy its working farm landscape and natural beauty, and

Whereas, Marshall Webb treasured outdoor pursuits such as walking along the shoreline or in the forest, skiing, and documenting the four-season beauty of Shelburne Farms in a collection of stunning photographs, and

Whereas, most recently, Marshall Webb had served as Shelburne Farms' Carbon Drawdown Fund Coordinator, and his untimely death on August 11, 2022, while swimming in Lake Champlain, left his wife, former Representative Kate Webb, children, and grandchildren, as well as his broad circle of friends and colleagues, deeply saddened, now therefore be it

Resolved by the Senate and House of Representatives:

That the General Assembly expresses appreciation and recognition for the life of Marshall Webb and his significant contributions to our Vermont community, and be it further

Resolved: That the Secretary of State be directed to send a copy of this resolution to the family of Marshall Webb and to Shelburne Farms.

Having been adopted in concurrence on Friday, February 17, 2023 in accord with Joint Rule 16b, was read.

Remarks Journalized

On motion of **Rep. McCoy of Poultney**, the following remarks by **Rep. Brumsted of Shelburne** were ordered printed in the Journal:

“Thank you, Madam Speaker.

You all heard the reading of the resolution we just passed in honor of Marshall Webb – so elegantly composed about a person who led such a beautiful, profound, and nurturing life. But as we all know, it is almost impossible to capture the depth, breadth, and influence of anyone’s life in a resolution or even in a short speech. The sheer force and passion of Marshall’s life, lived daily with love and care and vision, showered our community, our state – even the world – with the beliefs that each of us could make our world a better place, that each of us could make our planet a more sustainable place, that each of us could live more meaningful lives – and Marshall gave us those beliefs by living a life of example and a life of teaching, always conveyed with patience and love.

The accolades from around the world bestowed on Marshall since his untimely passing in August of last year are so very well-deserved – and really, SO amazing – and I want to add a couple of my own to this special person who has meant so very much to our town of Shelburne, to the people who live there, and to so many other Vermonters who access Shelburne Farms.

The creation and formation of Shelburne Farms by Marshall and his siblings is not simply a bit of preserved land. It is a sanctuary of peace, relaxation, renewal, daydreaming, sometimes challenge, and brings home the joy of living – with those you are with, with those you meet along the way, and with nature. It a place of refuge and harmony. It is an island of reprieve in our hectic, chaotic world.

As a Shelburne resident, I am forever grateful to Marshall for this great legacy. I am also grateful to Kate, our former beloved colleague, who not only represented Vermonters well here in the House of Representatives but most important she stood at Marshall’s side as he lived out the magic of who he was – Kate was his partner, his champion, his collaborator, his sounding board, and his companion in each of his endeavors through the years of their lives together. Their love for each other was surpassed only by the love they shared with all the members of their blended family.

I am honored to have Marshall's wife, Kate, two of his daughters, Lila and Sara, his brother Alec, who is President of Shelburne Farms, his sister, Lisa with her husband John Roberts, his niece Heidi Webb and many of his beautiful grandchildren and many members as my guests with us here today to honor Marshall.

Madam Speaker, on behalf of the other member from Shelburne and myself, I present to you and through you, Kate Webb and her family. Please join me in welcoming them to our House of Representatives."

Third Reading; Bill Passed

H. 470

House bill, entitled

An act relating to miscellaneous amendments to alcoholic beverage laws

Was taken up, read the third time, and passed.

Committee Bill; Second Reading; Third Reading Ordered

H. 471

Rep. Branagan of Georgia spoke for the Committee on Ways and Means.

House bill, entitled

An act relating to technical and administrative changes to Vermont's tax laws

Having appeared on the Notice Calendar and appearing on the Action Calendar, was taken up, read the second time, and third reading ordered.

Second Reading; Bill Amended; Third Reading Ordered

H. 55

Rep. Mulvaney-Stanak of Burlington, for the Committee on Commerce and Economic Development, to which had been referred

House bill, entitled

An act relating to miscellaneous unemployment insurance amendments

Reported in favor of its passage when amended by striking out all after the enacting clause and inserting in lieu thereof the following:

Sec. 1. 21 V.S.A. § 1301 is amended to read:

§ 1301. DEFINITIONS

~~The following words and phrases, as As used in this chapter, shall have the following meanings unless the context clearly requires otherwise:~~

* * *

(25) “Son,” “daughter,” and “child” include an individual’s biological child, foster child, adoptive child, stepchild, a child for whom the individual is listed as a parent on the child’s birth certificate, a legal ward of the individual, a child of the individual’s spouse, or a child that the individual has day-to-day responsibilities to care for and financially support.

(26) “Spouse” includes an individual’s domestic partner or civil union partner.

Sec. 2. 21 V.S.A. § 1301 is amended to read:

As used in this chapter:

* * *

(5) “Employer” includes:

(A) Any employing unit ~~which, after December 31, 1971~~ that in any calendar quarter in either the current or preceding calendar year paid for service in employment, as ~~hereinafter~~ pursuant to subdivision (6) of this section, wages of \$1,500.00 or more, or for some portion of a day in each of 20 different calendar weeks, whether or not such weeks were consecutive, in either the current or the preceding calendar year, had in employment, ~~as hereinafter defined,~~ at least one individual (irrespective of whether the same individual was in employment in each such day). When an employing unit described in either this subdivision or subdivision (5)(B) of this section, becomes an employer within any calendar year, it shall be subject to this chapter for the whole of ~~such~~ the calendar year.

(B)(i) Any employing unit for which service in employment for a religious, charitable, educational, or other organization as defined in subdivision (6)(A)(ix) of this section is performed after December 31, 1971;² except as provided in subdivision (5)(C) of this section.

* * *

(6)(A)(i) “Employment,” subject to the other provisions of this subdivision (6), means service within the jurisdiction of this State, ~~performed prior to January 1, 1978, which was employment as defined in this subdivision prior to such date and, subject to the other provisions of this subdivision, service performed after December 31, 1977,~~ performed by an employee, as defined in subsections 3306(i) and (o) of the Federal Unemployment Tax Act, including service in interstate commerce, performed for wages or under any contract of hire, written or oral, expressed or implied. Services partly within and partly ~~without~~ outside this State may by election as ~~hereinbefore~~ provided in subdivision (5)(E)(i) of this section be treated as if wholly within the

jurisdiction of this State. ~~And whenever~~ If an employing unit ~~shall have~~ has elected to come under the provisions of a similar act of a state where a part of the services of an employee are performed, the Commissioner, upon ~~his or her~~ approval of said ~~approving the~~ election as to ~~any such~~ the employee, may treat the services covered by ~~said approved~~ the election as having been performed wholly ~~without~~ outside the jurisdiction of this State.

* * *

(ix) The term “employment” shall also include service for any employing unit ~~which is performed after December 31, 1971~~ by an individual in the employ of a religious, charitable, educational, or other organization ~~but only if:~~

(~~I~~) the service is excluded from “employment” as defined in the Federal Unemployment Tax Act solely by reason of ~~section~~ subdivision 3306(c)(8) of that act; ~~and~~

(~~II~~) ~~the organization had four or more individuals in employment for some portion of a day in each of 20 different weeks, whether or not such weeks were consecutive, within either the current or preceding calendar year, regardless of whether they were employed at the same moment of time.~~

Sec. 3. 21 V.S.A. § 1321 is amended to read:

§ 1321. CONTRIBUTIONS; TAXABLE WAGE BASE CHANGES

* * *

(c)(1) Financing benefits paid to employees of nonprofit organizations.

(A) Benefits paid to employees of nonprofit organizations shall be financed in accordance with the provisions of this subsection (c).

(B) ~~For the purposes of~~ As used in this subsection (c), a “nonprofit organization” is means an organization (or group of organizations), described in Section 501(c)(3) of the U.S. Internal Revenue Code ~~which that~~ is exempt from income tax under Section 501(a) of ~~sueh~~ the Internal Revenue Code.

(2) Liability for contributions and election of reimbursement. Any nonprofit organization ~~which that~~, pursuant to subdivision 1301(5)(B)(i) of this ~~title~~ chapter, is, or becomes, subject to this chapter ~~on or after January 1, 1972~~ shall pay contributions under the provisions of this section, unless it elects, in accordance with this subsection, to pay to the Commissioner, for the Unemployment Insurance Trust Fund, an amount equal to the amount of regular benefits and of one-half of the extended benefits paid, that is attributable to service in the employ of ~~sueh~~ the nonprofit organization, to

individuals for weeks of unemployment ~~which~~ that begin during the effective period of ~~sueh~~ the election.

(A) ~~Any nonprofit organization which is, or becomes, subject to this chapter on January 1, 1972 may elect to become liable for payments in lieu of contributions for a period of not less than one calendar year beginning with January 1, 1972 provided it files with the Commissioner a written notice of its election within the 30-day period immediately following such date or within a like period immediately following April 16, 1971, whichever occurs later.~~ [Repealed.]

(B) ~~Any nonprofit organization which~~ that becomes subject to this chapter ~~after January 1, 1972~~ may elect to become liable for payments in lieu of contributions for a period of not less than 12 months ~~beginning with the date on which such subjectivity begins~~ by filing a written notice of its election with the Commissioner not later than 30 days immediately following the date of the determination ~~of such subjectivity~~ that the organization is subject to this chapter.

(C) ~~Any nonprofit organization which~~ that makes an election in accordance with ~~subdivisions (c)(2)(A) and~~ subdivision (B) of this section ~~will~~ subdivision (c)(2) shall continue to be liable for payments in lieu of contributions until it files with the Commissioner a written notice terminating its election not later than 30 days prior to the beginning of the calendar year for which ~~sueh~~ the termination shall first be effective.

(D) ~~Any nonprofit organization which~~ that has been paying contributions under this chapter ~~for a period subsequent to January 1, 1972~~ may ~~change to a reimbursable basis~~ elect to become liable for payments in lieu of contributions by filing with the Commissioner not later than 30 days prior to the beginning of any calendar year a written notice of election to become liable for payments in lieu of contributions. ~~Sueh~~ An election under this subdivision (c)(2)(D) shall not be terminable by the organization for that year and the next year.

(E) The Commissioner may for good cause extend the period within which a notice of election, or a notice of termination, must be filed and may permit an election to be retroactive ~~but not any earlier than~~ with respect to benefits paid after December 31, 1969.

(F) The Commissioner, in accordance with ~~sueh~~ any applicable rules as adopted by the Board ~~may prescribe,~~ shall notify each nonprofit organization of any determination ~~which he or she may make of~~ that the Commissioner makes with regard to its status as an employer and ~~of the effective date of any election~~ which it that the organization makes and of any

termination of ~~such an~~ election. ~~Such~~ The determinations shall be subject to reconsideration and to appeal and review in accordance with the provisions of section 1337a of this title.

(3) Reimbursement payments. Payments in lieu of contributions shall be made in accordance with the provisions of this subdivision, including either subdivision (A) or ~~subdivision~~ (B).

(A) At the end of each calendar quarter, or at the end of any other period as determined by the Commissioner, the Commissioner shall bill each nonprofit organization, or group of ~~such nonprofit~~ organizations, ~~which that~~ has elected to make payments in lieu of contributions for an amount equal to the full amount of regular benefits plus one-half of the amount of extended benefits paid during ~~such the~~ quarter or other prescribed period that is attributable to service in the employ of ~~such the~~ organization.

(B)(i) Each nonprofit organization that has elected payments in lieu of contributions may request permission to make ~~such~~ payments as provided in this subdivision (c)(3)(B). ~~Such method of payment~~ Payment pursuant to the provisions of this subdivision (c)(3)(B) shall become effective upon approval of the Commissioner.

(ii) At the end of each calendar quarter, the Commissioner shall bill each nonprofit organization approved to make payments pursuant to the provisions of this subdivision (c)(3)(B) for an amount representing ~~one of the following:~~

~~(I) For 1972, two-tenths of one percent of its total payroll for 1971.~~

~~(II) For years after 1972, such a percentage of its total payroll for the immediately preceding calendar year as that the Commissioner shall determine. ~~The determination shall be~~ determines to be appropriate based each year on the average benefit costs attributable to service in the employ of nonprofit organizations during the preceding calendar year.~~

~~(III) For The Commissioner may determine a different rate for any organization which that did not pay wages throughout the four calendar quarters of the preceding calendar year, ~~such percentage of its payroll during that year as the Commissioner shall determine.~~~~

(iii) At the end of each calendar year, the Commissioner may modify the quarterly percentage of payroll thereafter payable by the nonprofit organization in order to minimize excess or insufficient payments.

(iv) At the end of each calendar year, the Commissioner shall determine whether the total of payments for ~~such the~~ year made by a nonprofit

organization is less than, or in excess of, the total amount of regular benefits plus one-half of the amount of extended benefits paid to individuals during ~~such~~ the taxable year based on wages attributable to service in the employ of ~~such~~ the organization. Each nonprofit organization whose total payments for ~~such~~ the year are less than the amount so determined shall be liable for payment of the unpaid balance to the Trust Fund in accordance with subdivision (3)(C) of this subsection (c). If the total payments exceed the amount so determined for the taxable year, all or a part of the excess shall, at the election of the nonprofit organization, be refunded from the Trust Fund or retained in the Trust Fund as part of the payments ~~which~~ that may be required for the next calendar year.

(C) Payment of any bill rendered under subdivision (2) or ~~subdivision~~ (3) of this subsection (c) shall be made not later than 30 days after the bill is mailed to the last known address of the nonprofit organization or is otherwise delivered to it, unless there has been an application for redetermination by the Commissioner or a petition for hearing before a referee in accordance with subdivision (3)(E) of this subsection (c).

(D) Payments made by any nonprofit ~~corporation~~ organization under the provisions of this section shall not be deducted or deductible, in whole or in part, from the remuneration of individuals in the employ of the organization.

(E)(i) The amount due specified in any bill from the Commissioner shall be conclusive on the organization unless, not later than 30 days after the date of the bill, the organization files an application for reconsideration by the Commissioner, or a petition for a hearing before a referee, setting forth the grounds for ~~such~~ the application or petition.

(ii) The Commissioner shall promptly review and reconsider the amount due specified in the bill and shall thereafter issue a redetermination in any case in which ~~such~~ an application for redetermination has been filed. Any such redetermination shall be conclusive on the organization unless, not later than 30 days after the date of the redetermination, the organization files a petition for a hearing before a referee, setting forth the grounds for the petition.

(iii) Proceedings on the petition for a hearing before a referee on the amount of a bill rendered under this section or a redetermination of ~~such~~ the amount shall be in accordance with the provisions of section 1331 of this title, and the decision of the referee shall be subject to the provisions of that section. Review of the decision of the referee by the Employment Security Board shall be in accordance with, and its decision shall be subject to, the provisions of section 1332 of this title.

(F) Any employer, including the State of Vermont which, that makes payments in lieu of contributions under this section shall be subject to the provisions of sections 1314, 1322, 1328, 1329, 1334, and 1336 of this title as follows:

(i) ~~that~~ The employer shall be liable for any reports as required by the Commissioner ~~may require~~ pursuant to sections 1314 and 1322 of this title;

(ii) ~~that~~ The employer shall be liable for any penalty imposed pursuant to sections 1314 and 1328 of this title;

(iii) ~~that~~ The employer shall be liable for the same interest on past due payments pursuant to subsection 1329(a) of this title;

(iv) ~~that~~ The employer shall be subject to a civil action for the collection of past due payments as if those payments were contributions pursuant to subsections 1329(b) and 1334(a) of this title; ~~and~~.

(v) ~~that~~ The employer shall be subject to ~~those~~ actions for the collection of past due payments as if those payments were contributions pursuant to subsections 1329(c) and (d), and 1334(b) and (c), and section 1336 of this title; however, those provisions shall not apply to the State of Vermont.

(4) Authority to terminate elections. If any nonprofit organization is delinquent in making payments in lieu of contributions as required under this subsection, the Commissioner may terminate ~~such~~ the organization's election to make payments in lieu of contributions as of the beginning of the next taxable year, and the termination shall be effective for that and the next taxable year.

(5) Allocation of benefit costs.

(A) Each employer that is liable for payments in lieu of contributions shall pay to the Commissioner for the Trust Fund the amount of regular benefits plus the amount of one-half of extended benefits paid that are attributable to service in the employ of ~~such~~ the employer.

(B) If benefits paid to an individual are based on wages paid by more than one employer and one or more of ~~such~~ the employers are liable for payments in lieu of contributions, the amount payable to the Trust Fund by each employer that is liable for ~~such~~ payments in lieu of contributions shall be ~~determined in accordance with subdivisions (5)(A) and (B) of this subsection~~ (e):

(A) ~~Proportionate allocation when fewer than all base-period employers are liable for reimbursement. If benefits paid to an individual are based on wages paid by one or more employers that are liable for payments in~~

~~lieu of contributions and on wages paid by one or more employers who are liable for contributions, the amount of benefits payable by each employer that is liable for payments in lieu of contributions shall be an amount which that bears the same ratio to the total benefits paid to the individual as the total base-period wages paid to the individual by ~~sueh~~ the employer bear to the total base-period wages paid to the individual by all of ~~his or her~~ the individual's base-period employers.~~

~~(B) Proportionate allocation when all base-period employers are liable for reimbursement. If benefits paid to an individual are based on wages paid by two or more employers that are liable for payments in lieu of contributions, the amount of benefits payable by each employer shall be an amount which bears the same ratio to the total benefits paid to the individual as the total base-period wages paid to the individual by the employer bear to the total base-period wages paid to the individual by all of his or her base-period employers.~~

(6) Group accounts. Two or more employers that have become liable for payments in lieu of contributions, in accordance with the provisions of this section and section 1380 of this title, may file a joint application to the Commissioner for the establishment of a group account for the purpose of sharing the cost of benefits paid that are attributable to service in the employ of ~~sueh~~ the employers. Each application shall identify and authorize a group representative to act as the group's agent for the purpose of this section. Upon ~~his or her~~ approval of the application, the Commissioner shall establish a group account for ~~sueh~~ the employers effective as of the beginning of the calendar quarter in which ~~he or she~~ the Commissioner receives the application and shall notify the group's representative of the effective date of the account. The account shall remain in effect for not less than two years and thereafter until terminated at the discretion of the Commissioner or upon application by the group. Upon establishment of the account, each member of the group shall be liable for payments in lieu of contributions with respect to each calendar quarter in the amount that bears the same ratio to the total benefits paid in ~~sueh~~ the quarter that are attributable to service performed in the employ of all members of the group as the total wages paid for service in employment by ~~sueh~~ the member in ~~sueh~~ the quarter bear to the total wages paid during ~~sueh~~ the quarter for service performed in the employ of all members of the group. The Board shall ~~prescribe regulations~~ adopt rules as it deems necessary with respect to applications for establishment, maintenance, and termination of group accounts that are authorized by this subdivision, for addition of new members to, and withdrawal of active members from, such accounts, and for the determination of the amounts that are payable under this ~~section~~ subsection by members of the group and the time and manner of ~~sueh~~ the payments.

~~(7) Notwithstanding any of the foregoing provisions of this section, any nonprofit organization that prior to January 1, 1969, paid contributions required by this section, and, pursuant to subsection (c) of this section, elects within 30 days after January 1, 1972, to make payments in lieu of contributions, shall not be required to make any such payment on account of any regular or extended benefits paid, on the basis of wages paid by such organization to individuals for weeks of unemployment which begin on and after the effective date of the election until the total amount of benefits equals the amount (1) by which the contributions paid by the organization with respect to the two-year period before the effective date of the election under subsection (b) of this section exceed (2) the total amount of unemployment benefits paid for the same period that were attributable to service performed in the employ of the organization and were charged to the experience rating record of the organization. [Repealed.]~~

* * *

(f) Any employer who makes payments in lieu of contributions under the provisions of this section is considered to be self-insuring and shall pay to the Commissioner for the Unemployment Compensation Trust Fund such any amounts as the Commissioner finds to be due under this chapter, including benefits paid but denied on appeal or benefits paid in error which that cannot be properly charged either against another employer who makes payments in lieu of contributions or against the experience-rating record of another employer who pays contributions. Benefits improperly paid where repayment by the claimant is ordered pursuant to subsection 1347(a) or (b) of this title will be credited to the employer's account when repayment from the claimant is actually received by the Commissioner.

Sec. 4. NONPROFIT AND MUNICIPAL REIMBURSABLE EMPLOYERS; EDUCATION; OUTREACH

(a) On or before October 1, 2023, the Commissioner of Labor, in consultation with the Vermont League of Cities and Towns, Common Good Vermont, United Way of Northwest Vermont, and other interested stakeholders, shall develop information and education materials for nonprofit and municipal employers regarding the unemployment insurance system. At a minimum, the materials shall:

(1) explain the options available to nonprofit and municipal employers, including paying regular unemployment insurance contributions, reimbursing the Unemployment Insurance Trust Fund for attributable unemployment insurance costs, and, with respect to nonprofit employers, quarterly payments of estimated unemployment insurance costs;

(2) identify the potential benefits and drawbacks of each of the options identified in subdivision (1) of this subsection;

(3) provide information on how a nonprofit or municipal employer can evaluate its potential liability under each of the options identified in subdivision (1) of this subsection;

(4) provide information developed by the Vermont League of Cities and Towns, Common Good Vermont, United Way of Northwest Vermont, and other interested stakeholders regarding how a nonprofit or municipal employer can plan and budget for the potential expenses associated with each of the options identified in subdivision (1) of this subsection; and

(5) provide additional information regarding the Unemployment Insurance program and related laws that the Commissioner determines, in consultation with the Vermont League of Cities and Towns, Common Good Vermont, United Way of Northwest Vermont, and other interested stakeholders, to be helpful or necessary for nonprofit and municipal employers.

(b)(1) The informational and educational materials developed pursuant to subsection (a) of this section shall be made available on the Department's website and shall, in coordination with the Secretary of State, Common Good Vermont, United Way of Northwest Vermont, the Vermont League of Cities and Towns, and other interested stakeholders, be shared directly with Vermont nonprofit and municipal employers to the extent practicable.

(2) The Secretary of State shall assist the Commissioner of Labor in identifying and contacting all active Vermont nonprofit employers. The Office of the Secretary of State shall also make available on its website a link to the information and educational materials provided on the Department of Labor's website pursuant to this section.

(c) The Department of Labor, in collaboration with the Vermont League of Cities and Towns, Common Good Vermont, United Way of Northwest Vermont, and other interested stakeholders, shall hold one or more informational sessions to present the materials and information developed pursuant to subsection (a) of this section to nonprofit employers and municipal employers. At least one session shall be held on or before November 1, 2023. Each session shall allow for both in-person and remote participation and shall be recorded. Recordings shall be made available to the public and to stakeholder organizations for distribution to their members.

Sec. 5. 2021 Acts and Resolves No. 183, Sec. 59(b)(6) is amended to read:

(6) Sec. 52g (prospective repeal of unemployment insurance benefit increase) shall take effect ~~upon the payment of a~~ when the cumulative total

amount of additional benefits paid pursuant to 21 V.S.A. § 1338(e) when, compared to the rate at which benefits would have been paid under the formula set forth in 21 V.S.A. § 1338(e) on June 30, 2025 equal to \$92,000,000.00, plus the difference between \$8,000,000.00 and the amount of additional benefits paid out pursuant to section 52b, if any, compared to the amount that would have been paid pursuant to the provisions of 21 V.S.A. § 1338(f)(1) on June 30, 2022, equals \$100,000,000.00 and shall apply to benefit weeks beginning after that date.

Sec. 6. UNEMPLOYMENT DUE TO URGENT, COMPELLING, OR
NECESSITOUS CIRCUMSTANCES; COVERAGE; IMPACT;
REPORT

(a) On or before January 15, 2024, the Commissioner of Labor shall submit a written report prepared in consultation with the Joint Fiscal Office to the House Committee on Commerce and Economic Development and the Senate Committee on Economic Development, Housing and General Affairs regarding the potential impact of extending eligibility for unemployment insurance benefits to individuals who separate from employment due to urgent, compelling, or necessitous circumstances, including the individual's injury or illness, to obtain or recover from medical treatment, to escape domestic or sexual violence, to care for a child following an unexpected loss of child care, or to care for an ill or injured family member.

(b) The report shall include:

(1) a list of states in which individuals who separate from employment due to circumstances similar to those described in subsection (a) of this section are eligible for unemployment insurance and shall identify the specific circumstances for separation from employment in each identified state for which there is no waiting period or period of disqualification related to the circumstance;

(2) information, to the extent it is available, regarding the number of approved claims in the states identified pursuant to subdivision (1) of this subsection where the individual separated from employment due to circumstances similar to those described in subsection (a) of this section;

(3) an estimate of the projected range of additional approved claims per year in Vermont if individuals who separate from employment due to circumstances similar to those described in subsection (a) of this section are made eligible for unemployment insurance;

(4) an estimate of the range of potential impacts on the Unemployment Insurance Trust Fund of making individuals who separate from employment

due to circumstances similar to those described in subsection (a) of this section eligible for unemployment insurance; and

(5) any recommendations for legislative action.

Sec. 7. DOMESTIC AND SEXUAL VIOLENCE SURVIVORS'

TRANSITIONAL EMPLOYMENT PROGRAM; UTILIZATION;
REPORT

On or before January 15, 2024, the Commissioner of Labor shall submit a written report to the House Committee on Commerce and Economic Development and the Senate Committee on Economic Development, Housing and General Affairs regarding the utilization of the Domestic and Sexual Violence Survivors' Transitional Employment Program. The report shall include information regarding the utilization of the Program during the past 10 years, a summary of the Department's efforts to make members of the public aware of the Program and improve access to it, how the identified changes have impacted utilization of the Program in comparison to prior years, any potential ways to further increase awareness and utilization of the Program, and any suggestions for legislative action to improve awareness or utilization of the Program.

Sec. 8. 21 V.S.A. § 1256 is added to read:

§ 1256. NOTIFICATION TO THE PUBLIC

The Department shall take reasonable measures to provide information to the public about the Program, including publishing information on the Department's website and providing timely materials related to the Program to public agencies of the State and organizations that work with domestic and sexual violence survivors, including law enforcement, State's Attorneys, community justice centers, the Center for Crime Victim Services, the Vermont Network Against Domestic and Sexual Violence (the Network), and any others deemed appropriate by the Commissioner in consultation with the Network.

Sec. 9. EFFECTIVE DATES

(a) This section and Secs. 1, 3, 4, 5, 6, 7, and 8 shall take effect on July 1, 2023.

(b) Sec. 2 shall take effect on July 1, 2024.

Rep. Anthony of Barre City, for the Committee on Ways and Means, recommended the bill ought to pass when amended as recommended by the Committee on Commerce and Economic Development.

The bill, having appeared on the Notice Calendar, was taken up, read the second time, the report of the Committee on Commerce and Economic Development agreed to, and third reading ordered.

Second Reading; Bill Amended; Third Reading Ordered

H. 171

Rep. Noyes of Wolcott, for the Committee on Human Services, to which had been referred House bill, entitled

An act relating to adult protective services

Reported in favor of its passage when amended by striking out all after the enacting clause and inserting in lieu thereof the following:

Sec. 1. 33 V.S.A. chapter 69, subchapter 1 is amended to read:

Subchapter 1. Reports of Abuse of Vulnerable Adults

§ 6901. PURPOSE

(a) The purpose of this chapter is to:

(1) protect vulnerable adults whose health and welfare may be adversely affected through abuse, neglect, or exploitation; ~~provide a temporary or permanent nurturing and safe environment for vulnerable adults when necessary; and for these purposes to require the reporting of suspected abuse, neglect, and exploitation of vulnerable adults and the investigation of such reports and provision of services, when needed; and to intervene in the family or substitute care situation only when necessary to ensure proper care and protection of a vulnerable adult or to carry out other statutory responsibilities~~

(2) recognize and accommodate the barriers for vulnerable adults that may impair both their response to maltreatment and the ability to substantiate allegations of maltreatment; and

(3) require the reporting of suspected abuse, neglect, and exploitation of vulnerable adults, the investigation of such reports, and the establishment of protective services, when needed.

(b) The provision of protective services under this chapter shall not cause undue harm or violate the individual's autonomy and shall provide opportunities for the vulnerable adult's preferences to be considered.

§ 6902. DEFINITIONS

As used in this chapter:

(1) "Abuse" means:

(A) ~~Any medical treatment of a vulnerable adult that places life, health, or welfare in jeopardy or is likely to result in impairment of health that~~ purposely, knowingly, recklessly, or negligently places the life, health, or welfare of a vulnerable adult in jeopardy or is likely to result in impairment of health to the vulnerable adult.

(B) ~~Any conduct committed with an intent or reckless disregard that such conduct~~ purposely, knowingly, or recklessly that is likely to cause unnecessary harm, unnecessary pain, or unnecessary suffering to a vulnerable adult or places the life, health, or welfare of a vulnerable adult in jeopardy or is likely to result in impairment of health to the vulnerable adult.

(C) ~~Unnecessary or unlawful confinement or unnecessary or unlawful restraint of a vulnerable adult~~ Confinement, seclusion, restraint, or interference with the freedom of movement of a vulnerable adult, unless necessary to ensure the health and safety or the vulnerable adults or others.

(D)(i) Any sexual activity or acts of a sexual nature with a vulnerable adult by a caregiver ~~who volunteers for or is paid by a caregiving facility or program.~~ This definition shall not apply to a consensual relationship between a vulnerable adult and a spouse or household member as defined in 15 V.S.A. § 1101, ~~nor or~~ to a consensual relationship between a vulnerable adult and a caregiver hired, supervised, and directed by the vulnerable adult.

(ii) ~~Any sexual activity or acts of a sexual nature such as fondling, exposure of genitals, and lewd and lascivious conduct with a vulnerable adult when the vulnerable adult does not consent or when the individual knows or should know that the vulnerable adult is incapable of resisting or consenting to the sexual activity due to age, disability, or fear of retribution or hardship, regardless of whether the individual has actual knowledge of the adult's status as a vulnerable adult.~~

(E) ~~Intentionally subjecting a vulnerable adult to behavior that should reasonably be expected to result in intimidation, fear, humiliation, degradation, agitation, disorientation, or other forms of serious emotional distress~~ Purposely or recklessly subjecting a vulnerable adult to behavior that a reasonable person would expect to result in serious emotional or psychological distress, including intimidation, fear, humiliation, degradation, agitation, or disorientation.

(F) Administration, or threatened administration, of a drug, or substance, ~~or preparation~~ to a vulnerable adult for a purpose other than legitimate and lawful medical or therapeutic treatment.

(G) Wrongful denial or withholding of necessary medication, care, durable medical equipment, or treatment.

(H) Use of deception, force, threat, undue influence, harassment, duress, or fraud to induce a vulnerable adult to request or consent to receive or refuse treatment.

(2) “Activities of daily living” means dressing and undressing, bathing, personal hygiene, bed mobility, toilet use, transferring, mobility in and around the home, communication, and eating.

(3) “Acts of a sexual nature” means fondling, exposure of genitals, and lewd and lascivious conduct.

(4) “Adult” means any individual who is 18 years of age or older.

(5) “Alleged perpetrator” means the individual alleged to have abused, neglected, or exploited the alleged victim.

(6) “Alleged victim” means the individual who is alleged to have been abused, neglected, or exploited by the alleged perpetrator.

(7) “Assessment” means a process by which Adult Protective Services gathers additional information to determine if an investigation should be opened.

(8) “Care” means subsistence, medical services, personal care services, mental health services, or rehabilitative services and includes assistance with activities of daily living or instrumental activities of daily living.

(9) “Caregiver” means:

(A) a person, agency, facility, or other organization with a designated responsibility for providing subsistence or medical or other care to an adult who is an elder or has a disability, who has assumed the responsibility voluntarily, by contract, or by an order of the court; or a person providing care, including medical care, custodial care, personal care, mental health services, rehabilitative services, or any other kind of care provided that is required because of another’s age or disability care to another;

(B) a worker or employee in a facility or program that provides care to an adult who is an elder or has a disability and who has assumed the responsibility voluntarily, by contract, or by an order of the court; or

(C) a person providing care to a person that is required because of the person’s age or disability.

(3)(10) “Commissioner” means the Commissioner of Disabilities, Aging, and Independent Living.

(4)(11) “Department” means the Department of Disabilities, Aging, and Independent Living.

~~(5)~~(12) “Employer” means a person or organization who employs or contracts with one or more individuals to care for vulnerable adults, on either a paid or volunteer basis.

~~(6)~~(13) “Exploitation” means:

(A) willfully or knowingly using, withholding, transferring, or disposing of funds or property of a vulnerable adult without or in excess of legal authority for the wrongful profit or advantage of another to the detriment of a vulnerable adult;

(B) purposeful unauthorized access, sharing, or use of identifying information, image or likeness, personal accounts, or documents of a vulnerable adult without or in excess of legal authority to the detriment of the vulnerable adult or for the wrongful profit or advantage of another;

(C) breach of duty by a guardian, agent, or other fiduciary to the detriment of a vulnerable adult;

(D) acquiring or attempting to acquire possession or control of or an interest in funds or property of a vulnerable adult through the use of deception, force, threat, undue influence, harassment, duress, or fraud;

~~(C)~~(E) the act of forcing or compelling a vulnerable adult against his or her will to perform services for the profit or advantage of another refusing to return or surrender possession or control of an interest in funds or property of a vulnerable adult upon the request of a vulnerable adult or the vulnerable adult’s representative;

~~(D)~~(F) any sexual activity with a vulnerable adult when the vulnerable adult does not consent or when the actor knows or should know that the vulnerable adult is incapable of resisting or declining consent to the sexual activity due to age or disability or due to fear of retribution or hardship, whether or not the actor has actual knowledge of vulnerable status knowingly failing to use a vulnerable adult’s income and assets for the necessities required for that vulnerable adult’s support and maintenance;

(G) influencing or persuading a vulnerable adult to perform services with substandard compensation for the profit or advantage of another.

(14) “Expungement” means the removal of an individual’s name and associated identifying information from the Adult Abuse Registry.

(15) “Instrumental activities of daily living” means meal preparation, medication management, phone use, money management, household maintenance, housekeeping, laundry, shopping, transportation, and care of adaptive equipment.

(16) “Interested person” means a representative of the vulnerable adult; Adult Protective Services staff; the Commissioner of Disabilities, Aging, and Independent Living; or the Commissioner’s designee.

(17) “Investigative summary report” means the document that summarizes the investigation conducted by Adult Protective Services and includes a recommendation to substantiate or unsubstantiate the investigated allegations against the alleged perpetrator.

(18) “Lewd or lascivious conduct” has the same meaning as in 13 V.S.A. § 1375.

(19) “Maltreatment” means abuse, neglect, or exploitation as defined in this section. “Maltreatment” does not include self-neglect.

(20) “Mandatory reporter” means an individual with an obligation to report allegations of maltreatment of vulnerable adults pursuant to 6903 of this title.

(7)(21)(A) “Neglect” means purposeful or, knowing, reckless, or negligent failure or omission by a caregiver that has resulted in, or could be expected to result in, physical or psychological harm, including a failure or omission to:

(i) provide care or arrange for goods or services necessary to maintain the health or safety of a vulnerable adult, including food, clothing, medicine, shelter, supervision, and medical services, unless the caregiver is acting pursuant to the wishes of the vulnerable adult or ~~his or her~~ the vulnerable adult’s representative, or an advance directive, as defined in 18 V.S.A. § 9701;

(ii) make a reasonable effort, in accordance with the authority granted the caregiver, to protect a vulnerable adult from abuse, neglect, or exploitation by others;

(iii) carry out a plan of care for a vulnerable adult ~~when such failure results in or could reasonably be expected to result in physical or psychological harm or a substantial risk of death to the vulnerable adult,~~ unless the caregiver is acting pursuant to the wishes of the vulnerable adult or ~~his or her~~ the vulnerable adult’s representative, or an advance directive, as defined in 18 V.S.A. § 9701; or

(iv) report significant changes in the health status of a vulnerable adult to a physician, nurse, or immediate supervisor, when the caregiver is employed by an organization that offers, provides, or arranges for personal care.

~~(B) Neglect may be repeated conduct or a single incident that has resulted in or could be expected to result in physical or psychological harm, as a result of subdivision (A)(i), (ii), or (iii) of this subdivision (7) does not include self-neglect.~~

~~(8)(22) “Plan of care” includes a duty~~ means a medically approved plan of treatment, protocol, individual care plan, rehabilitative plan, plan to address activities of daily living, or similar procedure describing the care, treatment, or services to be provided to address a vulnerable adult’s physical, psychological, or rehabilitative needs.

~~(9)(23) “Protective services” means services, actions, measures, or intervention interventions that will, are intended, through voluntary agreement or through appropriate court action, to prevent further neglect, abuse, or exploitation of a vulnerable adult. Such services may include supervision, guidance, counseling, referrals, petitioning for relief from abuse, or petitioning for the appointment of a guardian, and, when necessary, assistance in the securing of safe and sanitary living accommodations. However, nothing in this chapter gives the Commissioner authority to place the vulnerable adult in a State school or hospital, except pursuant to 18 V.S.A. chapter 181 or 206.~~

~~(24) “Provider” means an individual, organization, or entity that provides care to adults known to be vulnerable.~~

~~(25) “Recommendation for substantiation” means that an investigation has been conducted and the Adult Protective Services investigator has concluded that the preponderance of the evidence discovered in the course of the investigation would lead a reasonable person to believe that the alleged perpetrator abused, neglected, or exploited the vulnerable adult.~~

~~(26) “Report” means the statements provided to Adult Protective Services from a reporter alleging that a vulnerable adult has been abused, neglected, or exploited.~~

~~(27) “Reporter” means the person who has submitted a report to Adult Protective Services.~~

~~(40)(28) “Representative” means a court-appointed guardian, or an agent acting under an advance directive executed pursuant to 18 V.S.A. chapter 231, or an agent under a power of attorney, unless otherwise specified in the terms of the advance directive power of attorney.~~

~~(29)(A) “Self-neglect” means an adult’s inability, due to physical or mental impairment or diminished capacity, to perform essential self-care tasks including:~~

- ~~(i) obtaining essential food, clothing, shelter, and medical care;~~

(ii) obtaining goods and services necessary to maintain physical health, mental health, or general safety; or

(iii) managing one's own financial affairs.

(B) The term "self-neglect," which is not maltreatment by another and is distinct from the definition of "neglect," excludes individuals who make a conscious and voluntary choice not to provide for certain basic needs as a matter of lifestyle, personal preference, or religious belief and who understand the consequences of their decision.

~~(11)~~(30) "Sexual activity" means a sexual act as defined in 13 V.S.A. § 3251, other than appropriate medical care or personal hygiene, ~~or lewd and lascivious conduct.~~

~~(12)~~(31) "Substantiated report" means that the Commissioner or the Commissioner's designee has determined, after the investigation, that a report is based upon accurate and reliable information that would lead a reasonable person to believe demonstrates, by a preponderance of the evidence, that the vulnerable adult has been abused, neglected, or exploited by the alleged perpetrator.

(32) "Unsubstantiated" means that an investigation has been conducted without a recommendation of substantiation. "Unsubstantiated" does not imply that maltreatment of a vulnerable adult by an alleged perpetrator did or did not occur. Reasons for unsubstantiation include:

(A) the Adult Protective Services investigator's conclusion that the preponderance of the evidence would not lead a reasonable person to believe that the alleged perpetrator had abused, neglected, or exploited the vulnerable adult;

(B) evidence that the alleged victim is not vulnerable;

(C) evidence that maltreatment did not occur; or

(D) a lack of sufficient evidence to demonstrate that the alleged victim meets the definition of a vulnerable adult or that maltreatment occurred.

~~(13)~~(33) "Volunteer" means an individual who, without compensation, provides services through a private or public organization.

~~(14)~~(34) "Vulnerable adult" means any person 18 years of age or older who:

(A)(i) is a resident of a facility required to be licensed under chapter 71 of this title;

~~(B)(ii)~~ is a resident of a psychiatric hospital or a psychiatric unit of a hospital;

~~(C)(B)~~ has been receiving assistance with personal care services for more than one month from a designated home health agency ~~certified by the Vermont Department of Health~~ or from a person or organization that offers, provides, or arranges for personal care; or

~~(D)(C)~~ regardless of residence or whether any type of service is received, ~~is impaired due to~~ has a physical, mental, or developmental disability; infirmities as a result of brain damage; or a mental condition; infirmities of aging; mental condition; or physical, psychiatric, or developmental disability; or is determined to be clinically eligible to receive Long-Term Care Medicaid waiver services resulting in:

(i) ~~that results in some~~ impairment of the individual's ability to provide for his or her own care without assistance, including the provision of food, shelter, clothing, health care, supervision, or management of finances independently engage in activities of daily living or instrumental activities of daily living or to provide for some aspect of the adult's own personal care without assistance; or

(ii) ~~because of the disability or infirmity, the individual has an impaired some~~ impairment of the adult's ability to protect himself or herself the adult from abuse, neglect, or exploitation.

§ 6903. REPORTING SUSPECTED ABUSE, NEGLECT, AND

EXPLOITATION OF VULNERABLE ADULTS

(a) ~~Any of the following, other than a crisis worker acting pursuant to 12 V.S.A. § 1614 and the State Long-Term Care Ombudsman or a representative of the Office, as defined in section 7501 of this title, who knows of or has received information of abuse, neglect, or exploitation of a vulnerable adult or who has reason to suspect that any vulnerable adult has been abused, neglected, or exploited shall report or cause a report to be made in accordance with the provisions of section 6904 of this title within 48 hours: All employees, contractors, volunteers, or grantees who directly provide health care, law enforcement, caregiving, counseling, education, or social services to adults, other than a crisis worker acting pursuant to 12 V.S.A. § 1614 and the State Long-Term Care Ombudsman or a designee of the Office, as defined in section 7501 of this title, who know of information of abuse, neglect, or exploitation of a vulnerable adult or who have reason to suspect that any vulnerable adult has been abused, neglected, or exploited shall report in accordance with the provisions of section 6904 of this title within two business days.~~

~~(1) all employees, contractors, and grantees of the Agency of Human Services who are involved in caregiving; If an individual listed in this subsection is a direct witness to evidence of abuse, neglect, or exploitation, the individual shall report or be party to a report that is made on behalf of multiple mandatory reporters.~~

~~(2) a physician, osteopath, chiropractor, physician assistant, nurse, medical examiner, licensed nursing assistant, emergency medical services personnel, dentist, or psychologist; If an individual listed in this subsection knows of abuse, neglect, or exploitation of a vulnerable adult or has actual knowledge that any vulnerable adult has been abused, neglected, or exploited, the individual shall report unless the individual has reason to believe that the evidence of abuse, neglect, or exploitation has already been reported.~~

~~(3) a school teacher, school librarian, school administrator, school guidance counselor, school aide, school bus driver, or school employee or school contractor who works regularly with students; Except as provided in subdivision (4) of this subsection (a), an individual listed in this subsection (a) shall not refuse to make a report required by this section on the grounds that making the report would violate a privilege or disclose a confidential communication.~~

~~(4) A crisis worker acting pursuant to 12 V.S.A. § 1614 and the State Long-Term Care Ombudsman or a designee of the Office, as defined in section 7501 of this title, shall not be required to make a report under this subsection (a) if the report would be based upon information received in a communication that is:~~

~~(i) made to a crisis worker or State Long-Term Care Ombudsman or a designee of the Office acting in the individual's professional capacity; and~~

~~(ii) intended by the parties to be confidential at the time the communication is made.~~

~~(4) a mental health professional, social worker, person or organization that offers, provides, or arranges for personal care for vulnerable adults; caregiver employed by a vulnerable adult; employee of or contractor involved in caregiving for a community mental health center; law enforcement officer; or individual who works regularly with vulnerable adults and who is an employee of an adult day care center, area agency on aging, senior center, or meal program designed primarily to serve vulnerable adults;~~

~~(5) a hospital, nursing home, residential care home, home health agency, or any entity providing nursing or nursing-related services for remuneration; intermediate care facility for adults with developmental disabilities; therapeutic community residence, group home, developmental home, school or~~

~~contractor involved in caregiving; or an operator or employee of any of these facilities or agencies.~~

(b) Any other concerned person not listed in subsection (a) of this section who knows of or has received a complaint of abuse, neglect, or exploitation of a vulnerable adult or who has reason to suspect that any vulnerable adult has been abused, neglected, or exploited may report or cause a report to be made in accordance with the provisions of section 6904 of this title.

(c) The identity of a person who makes a report under this section shall be kept confidential unless:

(1) the person making the report consents to disclosure;

(2) a judicial proceeding results from the report; ~~or~~

(3) a court, after a hearing, finds probable cause to believe the report was not made in good faith and orders the Department to disclose the person's identity; or

(4) the reporter is listed in subdivision (a)(1) of this section, in which case the reporter's information may be shared with other investigative bodies as necessary to conduct the investigation.

§ 6904. NATURE AND CONTENT OF REPORT; TO WHOM MADE

A report shall be made ~~orally or in writing~~ to the Commissioner or the Commissioner's designee as soon as possible, but in no event later than 48 hours thereafter. The report may also be made to a law enforcement officer. ~~If an oral report is made by telephone or otherwise, the Commissioner or designee shall request that it be followed within one week by a report in writing. Reports shall contain~~ To be considered a report to the Commissioner or designee, it shall contain the name and address of the reporter as well as the names and addresses of the vulnerable adult and persons responsible for ~~his or her~~ the vulnerable adult's care, if known; the age of the vulnerable adult; the nature of ~~his or her~~ the vulnerable adult's disability; the nature and extent of the vulnerable adult's abuse, neglect, or exploitation together with any evidence of previous abuse, neglect, or exploitation of the vulnerable adult; and any other information that the reporter believes might be helpful in establishing the cause of any injuries or reasons for the abuse, neglect, or exploitation as well as in protecting the vulnerable adult. If the reporter is in possession of documentation that establishes the alleged victim's conditions, needs, or services, that shall be included in the report. Any evidence of maltreatment shall also be cited in the report. If a report of abuse, neglect, or exploitation involves the acts or omissions of the Commissioner or employees of ~~that~~ the Department, then such reports shall be directed to the Secretary of

the Human Services, who shall cause the report to be investigated by appropriate staff other than staff of the Department.

* * *

§ 6906. ASSESSMENT AND INVESTIGATION

(a) Report of maltreatment.

~~(1) The Commissioner shall cause an investigation to commence within 48 hours after receipt of a report made pursuant to section 6904 of this title. Upon receipt of a report of maltreatment, the Department shall determine whether the report constitutes an allegation of abuse, neglect, or exploitation as defined in section 6902 of this title. The Department shall respond to reports of alleged abuse, neglect, or exploitation that occurred in Vermont and to out-of-State conduct when the vulnerable adult is a resident of Vermont.~~

~~(2) The Commissioner shall keep the reporter and the alleged victim informed during all stages of the investigation, and shall:~~

~~(A) Notify the reporter, the victim, and the victim's legal representative, if any, in writing if Adult Protective Services or the Division of Licensing and Protection decides not to investigate the report. The notification shall be provided within five business days after the decision is made and shall inform the reporter that he or she may ask the Commissioner to review the decision.~~

~~(B) Notify the reporter, the victim, and the victim's legal representative, if any, in writing if Adult Protective Services or the Division of Licensing and Protection refers the report to another agency. The notification shall be provided within five business days after the referral is made.~~

~~(C) Notify the reporter, the victim, and the victim's legal representative, if any, in writing of the outcome of the investigation. The notification shall be provided within five business days after the decision is made and shall inform the reporter that he or she may ask the Commissioner to review the decision. The Department shall determine whether to conduct an assessment or an investigation, as provided for in this section, or whether to screen out the report. An assessment may be used to determine whether an investigation is necessary. The Department shall begin either an assessment or an investigation within one business day in all cases in which the alleged victim has experienced a life-threatening or severe injury; requires hospitalization as a result of maltreatment; was the alleged victim of sexual abuse; or is experiencing ongoing harm. The Department shall initiate an assessment or an investigation within two business days after the day of the receipt of all other accepted reports made pursuant to section 6904 of this title. The Department shall collect the following demographic information about the~~

alleged victim and alleged perpetrator, if available, if an assessment or investigation is opened: gender, race, age, ethnicity, sexual orientation, gender identity, and disability status.

(3) The decision to conduct an assessment shall include consideration of the following factors:

(A) the severity of any alleged maltreatment and any injuries;

(B) the relationship between the alleged victim and alleged perpetrator;

(C) the known history of the report; and

(D) the detail and specificity of information provided in the report regarding the alleged victim's vulnerability and the alleged maltreatment.

(4) The Department shall investigate when an accepted report involves allegations indicating serious maltreatment or ongoing risk of harm to the alleged victim. The Department may investigate any report of maltreatment Adult Protective Services receives.

(5) The Department shall begin an immediate investigation if, at any time during an assessment, it appears that an investigation is appropriate.

(6) To the extent permitted by law, the Department may collaborate with law enforcement, health care and service providers, and other departments and agencies in Vermont and other jurisdictions to evaluate the risk to the vulnerable adult and may enter into reciprocal agreements with law enforcement, other departments and agencies, and other jurisdictions to further the purposes of this section. In no event shall the Department disclose information to other divisions, departments, or agencies unless such a disclosure is necessary to further the express purpose of this section.

(b) Assessment. The investigation shall include, except where inclusion would jeopardize the health, welfare, or safety of the vulnerable adult:

(1) a visit to the reported victim's place of residence or place of custody and to the location of the reported abuse, neglect, or exploitation;

(2) interviews with any available witnesses to the alleged abuse, neglect, or exploitation; An assessment, to the extent that is reasonable under the facts and circumstances provided in a report, shall include the following:

(3)(A) an interview with the reporter of the alleged abuse, neglect, or exploitation and the alleged victim, which shall focus on ensuring the immediate safety of the alleged victim and mitigating the future risk of harm to the alleged victim in the current environment;

~~(4) an interview with the reported victim, which interview may take place without the approval of the vulnerable adult's parents, guardian, or caregiver, but cannot take place over the objection of the reported victim; and~~

~~(5) an opportunity for the person who allegedly abused, neglected, or exploited to be interviewed.~~

~~(B) a determination as to whether the alleged victim meets the definition of a vulnerable adult and whether the allegations, if true, meet the statutory definition of abuse, neglect, or exploitation, or any combination thereof; and~~

~~(C) in collaboration with the alleged victim, the identification of resources and protective service needs that reduce the risk of future abuse, neglect, or exploitation and improve or restore the care and safety of the alleged victim.~~

~~(2) Services offered during or at the conclusion of an assessment can only be implemented through voluntary agreement or court action.~~

~~(3) If the assessment is closed without resulting in an investigation, there shall be no finding of abuse, neglect, or exploitation. However, the Department shall document the outcome of the assessment.~~

~~(4) The Department shall provide written notice to the victim, and the victim's representative who is not the subject of the assessment, of the outcome of the assessment.~~

~~(c) Investigation. Upon completion of the investigation, a written report describing all evidence obtained and recommending a finding of substantiated or unsubstantiated shall be submitted to the Commissioner or designee for final resolution. If the recommendation is for a finding of substantiated the person shall be given notice of the recommendation, and the evidence that forms the basis of the recommendation, and shall be notified of how a substantiated report might be used. The person shall be offered an opportunity to dispute the recommendation and may, within 15 days of notification, request an administrative hearing in front of the Commissioner or designee. Following the hearing, or if no hearing is requested within 15 days of notification, the Commissioner or designee shall make a finding of substantiated or unsubstantiated, and notify the person of the decision and of the right to appeal.~~

~~(d) Within 30 days of notification that a report has been substantiated, a person against whom a complaint has been lodged may apply to the Human Services Board for relief on the grounds that it is unsubstantiated. The Board shall hold a fair hearing under 3 V.S.A. § 3091. Unless the Commissioner agrees otherwise, the fair hearing shall be given priority by the Board and an~~

~~expedited hearing shall be provided, with a decision issued promptly thereafter.~~

~~(e) If a report is found to be unsubstantiated, the records shall be retained as part of the confidential records of the Department of Disabilities, Aging, and Independent Living. If no court proceeding is brought pursuant to subdivision 6903(c)(3) of this title within six years of the date of the notice to the person against whom the complaint was lodged, the records relating to the unsubstantiated report shall be destroyed after notice to such person, unless he or she requests that the records not be destroyed.~~

~~(f) If an appeal is filed pursuant to subsection (d) of this section or to a court, the name of the individual shall not be added to the Registry until a substantiated finding of abuse, neglect, or exploitation becomes final.~~

(1) The Department shall:

(A) Notify the reporter in writing if Adult Protective Services decides not to investigate or to conduct an assessment of the report. The notification shall be provided within five business days after the decision is made and shall inform the reporter that the reporter may ask the Commissioner to review the decision.

(B) Notify the alleged victim, and the alleged victim's representative, if any, in writing of the outcome of the investigation. The notification shall be provided within five business days after the decision has been made and shall inform the alleged victim or the alleged victim's representative that the alleged victim or the alleged victim's representative may ask the Commissioner to review the decision.

(2) The investigation shall include, except where inclusion would jeopardize the health, welfare, or safety of the vulnerable adult:

(A) An interview with the alleged victim, which may take place without the approval of the alleged victim's parents, guardian, or caregiver, but cannot take place over the objection of the alleged victim.

(B) An opportunity for the person who allegedly abused, neglected, or exploited the alleged victim to be interviewed. If the person declines to be interviewed, either through given notice or failure to respond, the alleged perpetrator shall be notified that the alleged perpetrator's declination may be noted in the investigation and may be taken into account in any potential appeal process.

(3) Upon completion of the investigation, the investigative summary describing pertinent evidence obtained during the course of the investigation and recommending a substantiation or unsubstantiation shall be submitted to

the Commissioner or designee. Prior to substantiation, the Department shall interview the alleged perpetrator unless the alleged perpetrator declines. The investigative summary shall include a recommendation of whether placement on the Registry is appropriate. If the recommendation is for substantiation, the alleged perpetrator shall be given written notice by certified mail of the recommendation and a summary of the evidence that forms the basis of the recommendation and shall be notified of any remedial options that may exist and how a substantiated report might be used. The alleged perpetrator may seek an administrative review of the Department's intention to place the alleged perpetrator's name on the Registry by notifying the Department within 14 calendar days after the date listed on the Department's notice of the right to an administrative review. The Commissioner may grant an extension past the 14-day period for good cause, not to exceed 28 calendar days after the date listed on the Department's notice.

(4) The administrative review of the Department's intention to substantiate may be stayed if there is a related case pending in the Criminal or Family Division of the Superior Court that arose out of the same incident of abuse, neglect, or exploitation that resulted in the recommendation for substantiation. During the period the administrative review is stayed, if the Department's intent is to place the alleged perpetrator's name on the Registry, it shall add the alleged perpetrator's name to the Registry with a notation that the case is pending. Upon resolution of the Superior Court criminal or family case, the alleged perpetrator may exercise the alleged perpetrator's right to review under this section by notifying the Department in writing within 28 calendar days after the related court case, including any appeals, has been fully adjudicated. If the alleged perpetrator fails to notify the Department within 28 calendar days, the Department's decision shall become final, and no further review under this subsection is required.

(A) The Department shall hold an administrative review within 28 calendar days after receipt of the request for review. At least 14 calendar days prior to the administrative review, the Department shall provide to the alleged perpetrator requesting an administrative review the following: the redacted investigation file, which means only the portion of the investigation file relevant to an Adult Protective Services recommendation, redacted as necessary to minimize disclosure of any confidential information; notice of time and place of the administrative review; and administrative review procedures, including information that may be submitted and mechanisms for providing information.

(B) At the administrative review, the alleged perpetrator who requested the review shall be provided with the opportunity to present documentary evidence or other information that supports the alleged

perpetrator's position and provides information to the reviewer in making the most accurate decision regarding the allegation. In determining the weight to be given any such evidence or information, the administrative reviewer shall consider whether the alleged perpetrator had an opportunity to present the evidence or information to the investigator during the investigation and, if so, the reasons for the failure to present the evidence or information at that time. The Department shall have the burden of proving that, based upon a preponderance of evidence, it concluded that a reasonable person would believe that the vulnerable adult has been abused, neglected, or exploited by that alleged perpetrator. The administrative review may be held remotely by telephone or through electronic means by mutual agreement of the parties.

(C) The Department shall establish an administrative case review unit within the Department and may contract for the services of administrative reviewers. An administrative reviewer shall be a neutral and independent arbiter who has no prior involvement in the original investigation of the allegation.

(5) Within seven calendar days after the completed review, the administrative reviewer shall:

(A) reject the Department's recommendation of substantiation;

(B) accept the Department's recommendation of substantiation; or

(C) defer any recommendation and direct the Department to further investigate upon the recommendation of the administrative reviewer.

(6) If the administrative reviewer accepts the Department's recommendation of substantiation, a Registry record shall be made within two business days. If the administrative reviewer rejects the Department's recommendation of substantiation, no Registry record shall be made.

(7) Within seven calendar days of the decision to reject or accept the recommendation of substantiation or to defer the substantiation in accordance with subdivision (5) of this subsection, the administrative reviewer shall provide notice to the alleged perpetrator of the administrative reviewer's decision. If the administrative reviewer accepts the Department's recommendation of substantiation, the notice shall advise the alleged perpetrator of the right to appeal the administrative reviewer's decision to the Human Services Board.

(8)(A) If no administrative review is requested, the Department's recommendation in the case shall be final, and the alleged perpetrator shall have no further right of review under this section.

(B) The Commissioner may grant an exception and permit such an administrative review upon good cause shown. Good cause may include an acquittal or dismissal of a criminal charge arising from the incident of abuse, neglect, or exploitation.

(9) In exceptional circumstances, the Commissioner, in the Commissioner's sole and nondelegable discretion, may reconsider any decision made by an administrative reviewer. A Commissioner's decision that imposes a penalty or creates a Registry record may be appealed to the Human Services Board.

(10) Within 30 calendar days after the date of the notice advising that a report has been substantiated, an alleged perpetrator against whom a complaint has been lodged may apply to the Human Services Board for relief on the grounds that it is unsubstantiated. The Human Services Board shall hold a fair hearing under 3 V.S.A. § 3091. Unless the Commissioner agrees otherwise, the hearing shall be given priority by the Human Services Board, and an expedited hearing shall be provided, not later than 30 calendar days after the date of the notice advising that a report has been substantiated, and a decision shall be issued within seven calendar days after the hearing.

(11) If a report is found to be unsubstantiated, the records shall be retained as part of the confidential records of the Department. If no court proceeding is brought pursuant to section 6903 of this title within six years following the date of the notice to the alleged perpetrator against whom the complaint was lodged, the records relating to the unsubstantiated report may be destroyed.

~~(g)~~(12) If the Human Services Board or a court reverses a substantiated finding, the Commissioner shall remove all information in accordance with subsection (e) of this section from the Registry.

~~(h)~~(13)(A) When a final determination has been made, the Commissioner shall inform the vulnerable adult or his or her the vulnerable adult's representative, the reporter, and, if the report is substantiated, the current employer of the individual, of the outcome of the investigation and any subsequent proceedings in writing.

(B) When a final determination of substantiation has been made, the Department shall also inform the perpetrator's current employer, if known, in writing of the outcome of the investigation and any subsequent proceedings.

§ 6907. REMEDIAL ACTION

~~(a) Coordinated treatment plan~~ Protective services. If the investigation produces evidence that the vulnerable adult has been abused, neglected, or exploited, ~~the Commissioner shall arrange for the provision of protective~~

services in accordance with a written coordinated treatment plan and protective services are not in place, the Department shall pursue available protective services.

(b) Consent to services.

(1) Protective services shall be provided only with the consent of the vulnerable adult, his or her; the vulnerable adult's guardian, agent under power of attorney, or agent under advance directive; or through appropriate court action. If the vulnerable adult does not consent, protective services shall not be provided, unless provision of protective services is court-ordered court ordered.

(2)(A) In the event that the vulnerable adult's guardian is the person responsible for the abuse, neglect, or exploitation, and the guardian does not consent to the investigation or receipt of protective services, the Commissioner may petition for removal of the guardian refuses consent to the investigation or the alleged victim's protective services, the investigator may seek review of the guardian's refusal by filing a motion with the Probate Division of the Superior Court pursuant 14 V.S.A. § 3062(c).

(B) In the event that the vulnerable adult's agent under power of attorney is the person responsible for the abuse, neglect, or exploitation, and the agent refuses to consent to the investigation or the alleged victim's protective services, the investigator may seek review of the agent's refusal by filing a petition in Superior Court pursuant to 14 V.S.A. § 3510(b).

(C) In the event that the vulnerable adult's agent under advance directive is the person responsible for the abuse, neglect, or exploitation, and the agent does not consent to the investigation or the receipt of protective services, the investigator may file a petition in Probate Court pursuant to 18 V.S.A. § 9718 to seek review under subdivision (b)(3) of that section as to whether the refusal is consistent with the authority granted to the agent in the advance directive.

(3) Failure to consent to protective services, either by the vulnerable adult or the vulnerable adult's guardian, agent under power of attorney, or agent under advance directive shall not automatically end an investigation of an alleged perpetrator.

* * *

§ 6909. RETALIATORY ACTION BY EMPLOYER PROHIBITED

No employer or supervisor may discharge; demote; transfer; reduce pay, benefits, or work privileges; prepare a negative work performance evaluation; or take any other action detrimental to any employee who files a good faith

report in accordance with the provisions of this chapter, by reason of the report. Any person making a report under this chapter shall have a civil cause of action for appropriate compensatory and punitive damages against any person who causes detrimental changes in the employment status of the reporting party by reason of ~~his or her~~ making a report. Nothing in this section grants immunity to a person reporting the person's own perpetration of maltreatment.

§ 6910. INTERFERENCE BY CAREGIVER

If consent to receive protective services has been obtained in accordance with section 6907 of this title and the Commissioner has reasonable cause to believe that the caregiver is interfering with the provision of those protective services, the ~~Commissioner~~ Department may petition the Superior Court for an order enjoining the caregiver from interfering with the provision of protective services. The petition shall present facts to show that the vulnerable adult is in need of protective services, that ~~he or she or his or her guardian~~ the vulnerable adult or the vulnerable adult's representative consents to the receipt of protective services, and that the caregiver has interfered with the provision of protective services. If the court, after hearing, finds that the vulnerable adult requires and consents to protective services, and has been prevented by ~~his or her~~ the vulnerable adult's caregiver from receiving protective services, the court may issue an order enjoining the caregiver from further interference. ~~The court may modify the terms of the coordinated treatment plan.~~

§ 6911. RECORDS OF ABUSE, NEGLECT, AND EXPLOITATION

(a) Access to records.

~~(1) Information obtained through reports and investigations, including the identity of the reporter, shall remain confidential and shall not be released absent a court order, except as follows: Subject to confidentiality or privilege protections, the Department's Adult Protective Services shall have access to any records or documents, including client-identifying information, financial records, and medical and psychological records, necessary to the performance of the Department's duties under this chapter. The duties include the investigation of abuse, neglect, or exploitation or the provision of protective services to a vulnerable adult. A person, agency, or institution that has a record or document that the Department needs to perform its duties under this chapter shall, without unnecessary delay, make the record or document available to the Department. Providing access to records relevant to an investigation by the Department or law enforcement under this provision shall not be deemed a violation of any confidential communication privilege. Access to any records that would violate attorney-client privilege shall not be provided without a court order. For the purposes of this subsection, "financial~~

records” does not include records developed or maintained by the Department of Financial Regulation.

(2) The Department is exempt from the payment of a fee otherwise required or authorized by law to obtain a financial record from a person, agency, or institution or a medical record, including a mental health record, from a hospital or health care provider if the request for a record is made in the course of an investigation by the Department.

(3) If the Department cannot obtain access to a record or document that is necessary to properly investigate or to perform another duty under this chapter, the Department may petition the Superior Court for access to the record or document.

(4) On good cause shown, the court shall order the person, agency, or institution in possession or control of a record or document to allow the Department to have access to that record or document under the terms and conditions prescribed by the court.

(5) A person, agency, or institution in possession or control of a requested record or document is entitled to notice and a hearing on a petition filed under this section.

(6) Access to a confidential record under this section does not constitute a waiver of confidentiality.

(7) A person shall not be held criminally or civilly liable for disclosing or providing information or records to the Department pursuant to this subsection. A person who in good faith makes an alleged victim’s information or a copy of the information available to an investigator in accordance with this section shall be immune from civil or criminal liability for disclosure of the information unless the person’s actions constitute negligence, recklessness, or intentional misconduct. Nothing in this section shall be construed to provide civil or criminal immunity to a person suspected of having abused, neglected, or exploited a vulnerable adult.

(b) Confidentiality of reports and documents.

(1)(A)(i) The investigative report Information obtained through reports to and assessments and investigations conducted by the Department, including the identity of the reporter, shall be confidential and shall not be released absent a court order, except the final investigative summary report shall be disclosed only to:

(i) the Commissioner or person designated to receive such records;

~~(H)~~(ii) persons assigned by the Commissioner to investigate reports;

~~(H)~~(iii) the person reported to have abused, neglected, or exploited a vulnerable adult alleged perpetrator;

~~(IV)~~(iv) the vulnerable adult or ~~his or her~~ the vulnerable adult's representative;

~~(V)~~(v) the Office of Professional Regulation when deemed appropriate by the Commissioner;

~~(VI)~~(vi) the Secretary of Education when deemed appropriate by the Commissioner;

~~(VII)~~(vii) the Commissioner for Children and Families or designee for purposes of review of expungement petitions filed pursuant to section 4916c of this title;

~~(VIII)~~(viii) the Commissioner of Financial Regulation when deemed appropriate by the Commissioner for an investigation related to financial exploitation;

~~(IX)~~(ix) a law enforcement agency; and

~~(X)~~(x) the State's Attorney, or the Office of the Attorney General, when the Department believes there may be grounds for criminal prosecution or civil enforcement action, or in the course of a criminal or a civil investigation.

~~(i)~~(B) When disclosing information pursuant to this subdivision (1), reasonable efforts shall be made to limit the information to the minimum necessary to accomplish the intended purpose of the disclosure, and no other information, including the identity of the reporter, shall be released absent a court order.

~~(B)~~(2) Relevant information may be disclosed to the Secretary of Human Services, or the Secretary's designee, for the purpose of remediating or preventing abuse, neglect, or exploitation; to assist the Agency in its monitoring and oversight responsibilities; and in the course of a relief from abuse proceeding, guardianship proceeding, or any other court proceeding when the Commissioner deems it necessary to protect the victim, and the victim or ~~his or her~~ the victim's representative consents to the disclosure. When disclosing information pursuant to this subdivision, reasonable efforts shall be made to limit the information to the minimum necessary to accomplish the intended purpose of the disclosure, and no other information, including the identity of the reporter, shall be released absent a court order. Disclosures necessary to conduct Adult Protective Services investigations or to

make referrals to law enforcement agencies, or to divisions or grantees of the Department, shall be permitted, but reasonable efforts shall be made to limit the information to the minimum necessary to accomplish the intended purpose of the disclosure.

(3) Notwithstanding subdivision (a)(1) of this section, financial information made available to an adult protective services investigator pursuant to this section may be used only in a judicial or administrative proceeding or investigation directly related to a report required or authorized under this chapter. Relevant information may be disclosed to the Secretary of Human Services, pursuant to subdivision (2) of this subsection.

~~(C) Relevant information may be disclosed to a Family Division of the Superior Court, upon the request of that court, in any proceeding in which:~~

~~(i) a parent of a child challenges a presumption of parentage under 15C V.S.A. § 402(b)(3); or~~

~~(ii) a parent of a child contests an allegation that he or she fostered or supported a bonded and dependent relationship between the child and a person seeking to be adjudicated a de facto parent under 15C V.S.A. § 501(a)(2).~~

~~(2) Notwithstanding subdivision (1)(A) of this subsection, financial information made available to an adult protective services investigator pursuant to section 6915 of this title may be used only in a judicial or administrative proceeding or investigation directly related to a report required or authorized under this chapter. Relevant information may be disclosed to the Secretary of Human Services pursuant to subdivision (1)(B) of this subsection; and may also be disclosed to the Commissioner of Financial Regulation when the investigation relates to financial exploitation of a vulnerable adult~~

~~(b)(c) The Commissioner Department shall maintain a registry of substantiated caregivers that shall contain the following information:~~

~~(1) the names of all the individuals found on the basis of a substantiated report to have abused, neglected, or exploited a vulnerable adult; the date of the finding; and the nature of the finding. In addition, the Commissioner shall require that, aside from a person's name, at least one other personal identifier is listed in the Registry to prevent the possibility of misidentification the date and nature of the finding;~~

~~(2) the names of individuals convicted of a crime pursuant to 13 V.S.A. § 1383; and~~

~~(3) in addition, aside from a caregiver's name, at least one other personal identifier to prevent the possibility of misidentification.~~

(e)(d) Disclosure of Registry information.

(1) The Commissioner or designee may disclose Registry information only to:

~~(1)(A)~~ The State's Attorney or the Attorney General.

~~(2)(B)~~ The public as required by the Nursing Home Reform Act of 1986 and regulations promulgated under the Act.

~~(3)(C)~~ An employer if such information is used to determine whether to hire or retain a specific individual providing care, custody, treatment, transportation, or supervision of children or vulnerable adults. "Employer," Notwithstanding section 6902 of this chapter, "employer," as used in this section, means a person or organization who employs or contracts with one or more individuals to care for or provide transportation services to children or vulnerable adults, on either a paid or volunteer basis. The employer may submit a request concerning a current employee, volunteer, grantee, or contractor or an individual to whom the employer has given a conditional offer of a contract, volunteer position, or employment. ~~The request shall be accompanied by a release signed by the current or prospective employee, volunteer, grantee, or contractor.~~ If that individual has a record of a substantiated report, the Commissioner Department shall provide the Registry information to the employer.

~~(4)(D)~~ An individual seeking to determine if the individual's own name is on the Registry.

(E) A person or organization serving vulnerable adults by assisting with employer functions; offering, providing, or arranging for home sharing; or providing personal care services, developmental services, or mental health services for vulnerable adults. The person or organization may submit a request concerning an individual who has applied to provide such services or an individual who is already so engaged. ~~The request shall be in writing and shall be accompanied by a release from the person applying for or already providing such services.~~ If the person has a record of a substantiated report, the Commissioner shall provide the Registry information.

~~(5)(F)~~ The Commissioner for Children and Families or designee for purposes related to:

~~(A)(i)~~ the licensing or registration of facilities and individuals regulated by the Department for Children and Families; and

~~(B)(ii)~~ the Department's child protection obligations under chapters 49-59 of this title.

~~(6)(G)~~ The Commissioner of Health or the Commissioner's designee for purposes related to oversight and monitoring of persons who are served by or compensated with funds provided by the Department of Health, including persons to whom a conditional offer of employment has been made.

~~(7)(H)~~ Upon request or when relevant to other states' adult protective services offices.

~~(8)(I)~~ The Board of Medical Practice for the purpose of evaluating an applicant, licensee, or holder of certification pursuant to 26 V.S.A. § 1353.

~~(9)(J)~~ The Secretary of Education or the Secretary's designee, for purposes related to the licensing of professional educators pursuant to 16 V.S.A. chapter 5, subchapter 4 and chapter 51.

~~(10)(K)~~ The Office of Professional Regulation for the purpose of evaluating an applicant, licensee, holder of a certification, or registrant for possible unprofessional conduct, where appropriate.

~~(11)(L)~~ A Family Division of the Superior Court upon request of that court if it is involved in any proceeding in which:

~~(A)(i)~~ a parent of a child challenges a presumption of parentage under 15C V.S.A. § 402(b)(3); or

~~(B)(ii)~~ a parent of a child contests an allegation that ~~he or she~~ the parent fostered or supported a bonded and dependent relationship between the child and a person seeking to be adjudicated a de facto parent under 15C V.S.A. § 501(a)(2).

(2) The request for disclosure of Registry information pursuant to subdivisions (1)(C), (1)(E)–(G), and (1)(I)–(K) of this subsection shall be in writing and accompanied by a release from the person applying for or already providing services to children or vulnerable adults.

~~(d)(e)~~ An employer providing transportation services to children or vulnerable adults may disclose Registry records obtained pursuant to subdivision ~~(e)(3)(d)(1)(C)~~ of this section to the Agency of Human Services or its designee for the sole purpose of auditing the records to ensure compliance with this chapter. An employer shall provide such records at the request of the Agency or its designee. Only Registry records regarding individuals who provide direct transportation services or otherwise have direct contact with children or vulnerable adults may be disclosed.

~~(e)(f)~~ A person may, at any time, apply to the Human Services Board for relief if ~~he or she~~ the person has reasonable cause to believe that the contents of the Registry or investigative records are being misused.

~~(f)(g)~~ A person may at any time apply to the Department for expungement of ~~his or her~~ the person's name from the Registry. ~~The petitioner person shall have the burden of showing why his or her~~ the person's name should be expunged from the Registry. The Department shall consider the person's completion of a restorative justice process reparation and rehabilitation in determining whether the person's name should be expunged from the Registry.

~~(g)~~ Any person who violates this section shall be fined not more than \$500.00.

~~(h)~~ Volunteers shall be considered employees for purposes of this section.

* * *

§ 6913. PENALTIES; ABUSE; NEGLECT; EXPLOITATION;

MANDATORY REPORTER'S FAILURE TO REPORT

(a) Whenever the ~~Commissioner~~ Department finds, after notice and hearing, that a person has committed sexual abuse as defined in subdivision 6902(1)(D) of this title, ~~sexual exploitation as defined in subdivision 6902(6)(D);~~ exploitation as defined in subdivision 6902(6)(A) ~~or (B)~~ 6902(13) of this title in an amount in excess of \$500.00, abuse that causes grievous injury to or the death of a vulnerable adult, or neglect that causes grievous injury to or the death of a vulnerable adult, the ~~Commissioner~~ Department may impose an administrative penalty of not more than ~~\$10,000.00~~ \$25,000.00 for each violation. The ~~Commissioner~~ Department shall notify the Office of Professional Regulation, or any other professional licensing board applicable to the violator, of any decision made pursuant to this subsection.

(b) The Department shall investigate allegations that a mandated reporter has failed to make a required report when it appears that an investigation is appropriate. Whenever the ~~Commissioner~~ Department finds, after notice and hearing, that a mandatory reporter, as defined in ~~subdivisions 6903(a)(1), (2), (3), (4), and (5)~~ subsection 6903(a) of this title, has willfully violated the provisions of ~~subsection~~ subdivision 6903(a)(1), the ~~Commissioner~~ Department may impose an administrative penalty not to exceed ~~\$500.00~~ \$1,000.00 per violation. For purposes of this subsection, every 24 hours that a report is not made beyond the period for reporting required by ~~subsection~~ section 6903(a) shall constitute a new and separate violation, and a mandatory reporter shall be liable for an administrative penalty of not more than ~~\$500.00~~ \$1,000.00 for each 24-hour period, not to exceed a maximum penalty of ~~\$5,000.00~~ \$25,000.00 per reportable incident.

(c) Whenever the Department finds that a mandatory reporter willfully or knowingly withheld information, or provided false or inaccurate information,

the Department may impose an administrative penalty not to exceed \$1,000.00 per violation.

(d) A person who is aggrieved by a decision under subsection (a) or (b) or (c) of this section may appeal that decision to the Superior Court, where either party may request trial by jury.

§ 6914. ACCESS TO CRIMINAL RECORDS

~~(a) The Commissioner may obtain from the Vermont Crime Information Center the record of convictions of any person to the extent that the Commissioner has determined by rule that such information is necessary to protect vulnerable adults.~~ The Commissioner may obtain from the Vermont Crime Information Center the record of convictions of any person to the extent that the Commissioner has determined that such information is necessary to protect vulnerable adults.

~~(b) An employer may ask the Commissioner to obtain from the Vermont Crime Information Center the record of convictions of a person who is a current employee, volunteer, or contractor, or a person to whom the employer has given a conditional offer of a contract, volunteer position, or employment. The request shall be in writing and shall be accompanied by a release by the current or prospective contractor or employee. If the person has a record of convictions, the Commissioner shall inform the employer of the date and type of conviction.~~

~~(c) A person or organization serving vulnerable adults by assisting with employer functions, offering, providing, or arranging for home sharing, personal care services, developmental services, or mental health services for vulnerable adults, may submit a request to the Commissioner concerning an individual who has applied to provide such services or an individual who is already so engaged. The request shall be in writing, and shall be accompanied by a release from the individual applying for or already providing such services. If the individual has a record of convictions, the Commissioner shall inform the person or organization submitting the request of the date and type of conviction.~~

(d) The Commissioners of Disabilities, Aging, and Independent Living, of Health, and of Mental Health or their designees may, for the protection of vulnerable adults or for purposes related to oversight and monitoring of persons who are served by or compensated with funds provided by the Departments of Disabilities, Aging, and Independent Living, of Health, and of Mental Health, ask the Vermont Crime Information Center for the record of convictions of a person who is a current employee, volunteer, or contractor, or a person to whom the employer has given a conditional offer of a contract,

volunteer position, or employment. If the individual has a record of convictions, the Vermont Crime Information Center shall inform the appropriate Commissioner, or the Commissioner's designee, department of the date and type of conviction.

~~(e)~~(c) Information released to an employer under this section shall not be released or disclosed by the employer to any person. Any person who violates this subsection shall be fined not more than \$500.00.

~~(f) Volunteers shall be considered employees for purposes of this section.~~

~~(g) [Repealed.]~~

§ 6915. ACCESS TO FINANCIAL INFORMATION

(a) As used in this chapter:

(1) "A person having custody or control of the financial information" means:

(A) a bank as defined in 8 V.S.A. § 11101;

(B) a credit union as defined in 8 V.S.A. § 30101;

(C) a broker-dealer or investment advisor, as those terms are defined in 9 V.S.A. § 5102; or

(D) a mutual fund as defined in 8 V.S.A. § 3461.

(2) "Capacity" means an individual's ability to make and communicate a decision regarding the issue that needs to be decided.

(3) "Financial information" means an original or copy of, or information derived from:

(A) a document that grants signature authority over an account held at a financial institution;

(B) a statement, ledger card, or other record of an account held at a financial institution that shows transactions in or with respect to that account;

(C) a check, clear draft, or money order that is drawn on a financial institution or issued and payable by or through a financial institution;

(D) any item, other than an institutional or periodic charge, that is made under an agreement between a financial institution and another person's account held at a financial institution;

(E) any information that relates to a loan account or an application for a loan;

(F) information pertaining to an insurance or endowment policy, annuity contract, contributory or noncontributory pension fund, mutual fund, or security, as defined in 9 V.S.A. § 5102; or

(G) evidence of a transaction conducted directly or by electronic or telephonic means, including surveillance video, access logs, IP addresses, and any other digital logs, documents, and metadata.

(4) “Financial institution” means any financial services provider licensed, registered, or otherwise authorized to do business in Vermont, including a bank, credit union, broker-dealer, investment advisor, mutual fund, or investment company.

~~(b)(1)~~ A person having custody or control of the financial information of a vulnerable adult shall make the information or a copy of the information available to an Adult Protective Services investigator upon receipt of ~~a court order or receipt~~ of the investigator’s written request or, in the instances described in subsections (d) and (e) of this section, upon receipt of a court order.

~~(1)(2)~~ The request shall include a statement signed by the account holder, if ~~he or she~~ the account holder has capacity, or the account holder’s guardian with financial powers or agent under a power of attorney consenting to the release of the information to the investigator.

~~(2)(c)~~ If the vulnerable adult lacks capacity and does not have a guardian or agent, or if the vulnerable adult lacks capacity and ~~his or her~~ the vulnerable adult’s guardian or agent is the alleged perpetrator, the request shall include a statement signed by the investigator asserting that all of the following conditions exist:

~~(A)(1)~~ The account holder is an alleged victim of abuse, neglect, or financial exploitation.

~~(B)(2)~~ The alleged victim lacks the capacity to consent to the release of the financial information.

~~(C)(3)~~ Law enforcement is not involved in the investigation or has not requested a subpoena for the information.

~~(D)(4)~~ The alleged victim will suffer imminent harm if the investigation is delayed while the investigator obtains a court order authorizing the release of the information.

~~(E)(5)~~ Immediate enforcement activity that depends on the information would be materially and adversely affected by waiting until the alleged victim regains capacity.

~~(F)(6)~~ The Commissioner of Disabilities, Aging, and Independent Living has personally reviewed the request and confirmed that the conditions set forth in subdivisions (A) through (E) of this subdivision (2) this subsection have been met and that disclosure of the information is necessary to protect the alleged victim from abuse, neglect, or financial exploitation.

~~(e)(d)~~ If a guardian refuses to consent to the release of the alleged victim's financial information, the investigator may seek review of the guardian's refusal by filing a motion with the Probate Division of the Superior Court pursuant to 14 V.S.A. § 3062(c).

~~(d)(e)~~ If an agent under a power of attorney refuses to consent to the release of the alleged victim's financial information, the investigator may file a petition in Superior Court pursuant to 14 V.S.A. § 3510(b) to compel the agent to consent to the release of the alleged victim's financial information.

~~(e)(f)~~ The investigator shall include a copy of the written request in the alleged victim's case file.

~~(f)(g)~~ The person having custody or control of the financial information shall not require the investigator to provide details of the investigation to support the request for production of the information.

~~(g)(h)~~ The information requested and released shall be used only to investigate the allegation of abuse, neglect, or financial exploitation or for the purposes set forth in subdivision ~~6911(a)(1)(B)~~ 6911(b)(3) of this title and shall not be used against the alleged victim.

~~(h)(i)~~ The person having custody or control of the financial information shall provide the information to the investigator as soon as possible but, absent extraordinary circumstances, ~~no~~ not later than 10 business days following receipt of the investigator's written request or receipt of a court order or subpoena requiring disclosure of the information.

~~(i)(j)~~ A person who in good faith makes an alleged victim's financial information or a copy of the information available to an investigator in accordance with this section shall be immune from civil or criminal liability for disclosure of the information unless the person's actions constitute gross negligence, recklessness, or intentional misconduct. Nothing in this section shall be construed to provide civil or criminal immunity to a person suspected of having abused, neglected, or exploited a vulnerable adult.

~~(j)~~ The person having custody or control of the financial information of an alleged victim may charge the Department of Disabilities, Aging, and Independent Living no more than the actual cost of providing the information to the investigator and shall not refuse to provide the information until payment is received. A financial institution shall not charge the Department

~~for the information if the financial institution would not charge if the request for the information had been made directly by the account holder.~~

* * *

§ 6917. WRITTEN COMMUNICATIONS

Any written communications from the Department, an administrative reviewer, or the Human Services Board to the alleged victim or to the alleged perpetrator shall use plain language.

§ 6918. RULEMAKING

The Commissioner shall adopt rules pursuant to 3 V.S.A. chapter 25 to implement this subchapter, including:

(1) conducting referrals on intakes, including:

(A) required referrals; and

(B) referrals on intake reports not accepted for assessment or investigation;

(2) conducting assessments, including:

(A) the components of an assessment;

(B) the determinations of an assessment; and

(C) timelines required for the assessment; and

(3) conducting investigations, including:

(A) the components of an investigation;

(B) the determinations of an investigation; and

(C) timelines required for the investigation.

Sec. 2. 33 V.S.A. chapter 69, subchapter 2 is amended to read:

Subchapter 2. Abuse Maltreatment Prevention for Vulnerable Adults

* * *

§ 6932. JURISDICTION AND VENUE

(a) The Family Division of the Superior Court shall have jurisdiction over proceedings under this subchapter.

(b) Emergency orders under section 6936 of this title may be issued by a judge of the Criminal, Civil, or Family Division of the Superior Court.

(c) Proceedings under this subchapter may be commenced in the county in which the ~~plaintiff~~ vulnerable adult resides. If the vulnerable adult has left the

residence to avoid abuse, neglect, or exploitation, the ~~plaintiff~~ vulnerable adult shall have the option to bring an action in the county of the previous residence or the county of the new residence.

§ 6933. REQUEST FOR RELIEF

(a) A vulnerable adult, Adult Protective Services staff, or an interested person on behalf of a vulnerable adult may seek relief from abuse, neglect, or exploitation by filing a petition requesting one or ~~both~~ more of the following orders:

(1) an order that the defendant refrain from abusing, neglecting, or exploiting the vulnerable adult;

(2) an order that the defendant immediately vacate the household;

(3) an order that the defendant shall not contact or communicate with the vulnerable adult either directly or through a third party;

(4) an order that the defendant shall not come within a fixed distance from the vulnerable adult;

(5) an order that the defendant shall not follow or stalk, as defined in 12 V.S.A. § 5131, the vulnerable adult;

(6) an order to deliver care plans, medicines, physicians' orders, and medical records to the vulnerable adult or the vulnerable adult's representative;

(7) an order to cooperate in the transfer of the vulnerable adult's care to ensure the vulnerable adult's safety and well-being;

(8) an order to immediately return any cash, checks, money, or property belonging to the vulnerable adult in the defendant's possession;

(9) an order to immediately return any personal documentation regarding the vulnerable adult, including identification documents, insurance information, financial records, and immigration documentation;

(10) an order that the defendant shall not access, dispose of, take, or transfer funds, accounts, or property from the vulnerable adult or any account in the name of the vulnerable adult;

(11) an order to cease any access, sharing, or use of identifying information, image, or likeness of the vulnerable adult;

(12) an order regarding possession, care, and control of any animal owned, possessed, leased, kept, or held as a pet by the vulnerable adult; and

(13) such other orders as deemed necessary to protect the vulnerable adult.

(b) No filing fee shall be required.

§ 6934. NOTICE

Except as provided in section 6936 of this title, the court shall grant relief only after notice to the defendant and a hearing. If the petition is made by an interested person, notice shall be provided to the vulnerable adult and the court shall determine whether the vulnerable adult is capable of expressing ~~his or her~~ the vulnerable adult's wishes with respect to the petition and, if so, whether the vulnerable adult wishes to pursue the petition. If the court determines that the vulnerable adult is capable of expressing ~~his or her~~ the vulnerable adult's opinion and does not wish to pursue the petition, the court shall dismiss the petition.

* * *

Sec. 3. 18 V.S.A. § 9718 is amended to read:

§ 9718. PETITION FOR REVIEW BY THE PROBATE DIVISION OF THE
SUPERIOR COURT

(a) A petition may be filed in the Probate Division of the Superior Court under this section by:

(1) a principal, guardian, agent, ombudsman, a mental health patient representative, or interested individual other than one identified in an advance directive, pursuant to subdivision 9702(a)(10) of this title, as not authorized to bring an action under this section;

(2) a social worker or health care provider employed by or directly associated with the health care provider, health care facility, or residential care facility providing care to the principal;

(3) the Defender General if the principal is in the custody of the Department of Corrections;

(4) a representative of the State-designated protection and advocacy system if the principal is in the custody of the Department of Mental Health; ~~or~~

(5) an individual or entity identified in an advance directive, pursuant to subdivision 9702(a)(10) of this title, as authorized to bring an action under this section; or

(6) Adult Protective Services, for the purposes of reviewing the authority of the agent under 33 V.S.A. § 6907(b)(3) to refuse protective services under 33 V.S.A. § 6907(b)(2)(C).

* * *

Sec. 4. ADULT PROTECTIVE SERVICES; FINANCIAL PROTECTIONS

On or before November 1, 2023, the Department of Disabilities, Aging, and Independent Living, in collaboration with the Department of Financial Regulation and representatives of financial institutions as defined in 33 V.S.A. § 6915, shall submit a report to House Committee on Human Services and to the Senate Committee on Health and Welfare providing proposed legislative changes to protect vulnerable adults from financial abuse, neglect, and exploitation.

Sec. 5. EFFECTIVE DATE

This act shall take effect on July 1, 2023.

The bill, having appeared on the Notice Calendar, was taken up and read the second time.

Pending the question, Shall the bill be amended as recommended by the Committee on Human Services?, **Rep. Noyes of Wolcott** moved that the report of the Committee on Human Services be amended as follows:

First: In Sec. 1, 33 V.S.A. chapter 69, subchapter 1, in section 6902, in subsection (a), in subdivision (1)(D)(ii), by removing the phrase “~~such as fondling, exposure of genitals, and lewd and lascivious conduct~~”

Second: In Sec. 1, 33 V.S.A. chapter 69, subchapter 1, in section 6903, in subsection (a), by removing the phrase “~~; other than a crisis worker acting pursuant to 12 V.S.A. § 1614 and the State Long Term Ombudsman or a designee of the Office, as defined in section 7501 of this title,~~”

Third: In Sec. 1, 33 V.S.A. chapter 69, subchapter 1, in section 6911, in subdivision (a)(1), by removing the sentence: “~~Providing access to records relevant to an investigation by the Department or law enforcement under this provision shall not be deemed a violation of any confidential communication privilege. Access to any records that would violate attorney-client privilege shall not be provided without a court order.~~”

Fourth: In Sec. 1, 33 V.S.A. chapter 69, subchapter 1, in section 6911, in subdivision (a)(7), by removing the sentence: “~~A person shall not be held criminally or civilly liable for disclosing or providing information or records to the Department pursuant to this subsection.~~”

Fifth: In Sec. 1, 33 V.S.A. chapter 69, subchapter 1, in section 6911, in subsection (g), in the third sentence, by removing the phrase “~~a restorative justice process~~”

Sixth: In Sec. 1, 33 V.S.A. chapter 69, subchapter 1, in section 6933, in subdivision (a)(5), by removing the phrase “~~follow or~~”

Representative Noyes moves that the report of the Committee on Human Services be amended as follows:

Which was agreed to. Thereupon, the report of the Committee on Human Services, as amended, was agreed to, and third reading ordered.

Favorable Report; Second Reading; Third Reading Ordered

H. 110

Rep. Patt of Worcester, for the Committee on Environment and Energy, to which had been referred House bill, entitled

An act relating to extending the sunset under 30 V.S.A. § 248a

Reported in favor of its passage. The bill, having appeared on the Notice Calendar, was taken up, read the second time, and third reading ordered.

Message from the Senate No. 29

A message was received from the Senate by Ms. Kucserik, its Assistant Secretary, as follows:

Madam Speaker:

I am directed to inform the House that:

The Senate has on its part passed Senate bills of the following titles:

S. 37. An act relating to access to legally protected health care activity and regulation of health care providers.

S. 48. An act relating to regulating the sale of catalytic converters.

S. 94. An act relating to the City of Barre tax increment financing district.

In the passage of which the concurrence of the House is requested.

The Senate has on its part adopted joint resolution of the following title:

J.R.S. 20. Joint resolution relating to weekend adjournment.

In the adoption of which the concurrence of the House is requested.

Adjournment

At eleven o'clock and fifty-two minutes in the forenoon, on motion of **Rep. McCoy of Poultney**, the House adjourned until tomorrow at one o'clock in the afternoon.